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Brief profiles of our Directors

Mohanan Gopalakrishnan, is the Managing Director of the Company. He finished his graduation in B. Com
from the University of Kerala. He has vast experience in the banking industry. He has promoted the investment
company namely Indel Corporation Private Limited as a Special Purpose Vehicle for investments into various
sectors, namely financial services, automotive, hospitality, agriculture, infrastructure, construction,
communication, media and entertainment.

Umesh Mohanan, is the Whole Time Director of the Company. He completed his MBA in finance from American
Global International University. He is an investment professional with a rich experience in managing investment
verticals. His track record includes heading a Middle Eastern multinational multibillion conglomerate at its
executive level, spearheading its operations across the globe, diversified into portfolios such as banking
investments, infrastructure construction, oil and gas, power stations, defence supplies, manufacturing, trading of
minerals, bullion and other commodities. Currently he serves Indel Money Limited as its Executive Director.

Anantharaman Trikkur Ramachandran, Non-Executive Director of the company is a chartered accountant by
profession and is a partner with the CA firm Sengottaiyan & Co., which focuses on audit & enterprise risk, tax
consulting and financial advisory services across various cities in India for about two decades.

Salil Venu, Non-Executive Director of the Company is an administrative management professional with vast
experience of in the administration and management sector.

Kavitha Menon, is an experienced entrepreneur and has been instrumental in nurturing the talent pool at the
Company. She completed her graduation in B. Com from the University of Calicut. She heads the skill set
development initiatives and has implemented numerous training programs across the Company resulting in
improved employee performance.

Narasinganallore Venkatesh Srinivasan, is an Independent Director of the company. He is a chartered
accountant from the 1984 batch, has vast experience in the banking sector including more than two decades of
experience in managing treasury and international banking. In addition, he has extensive experience in matters
relating to finance, risk management, information technology, accounting standards, audit & assurance as well as
bank taxation. He has been serving as the chief executive officer of Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI).
Prior to taking up the position, he was the executive director and chief financial officer of Lakshmi Vilas Bank
Limited based in Mumbai. Before his stint with Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited , he was associated with IDBI Bank
Limited, where he held positions, including that of the chief financial officer and executive director. He was also
a member of the technical advisory committee of RBI on money market, securities market and foreign exchange.
He was also the chairman of FIMMDA during the same period.

Chitethu Ramakrishna Sasikumar is an Independent Director of the company. He finished his graduation in
BA in social sciences from the University of Kerala. He is a retired banker from State Bank of India as deputy
managing director. Prior to this, he served as the deputy managing director (Inspection & Management Audit),
responsible for internal audit of State Bank of India (“SBI”). He has also served as chief general manager of the
Hyderabad circle of SBI SG Global Securities and chief executive officer of SBI Shanghai.

Sethuraman Ganesh is an Independent Director of the company. He is a former principal chief general manager
of Reserve Bank of India. Currently, he holds the position of independent director on the Board of Sonata Finance
Private Limited, based at Lucknow. He was also a non-executive director on the board of BSS Microfinance
Private Limited at Bengaluru. In addition, he is a member of the Advisory Board of Sanskriti University, Mathura,
and the Infimind Institute of Skill Development LLP, Bengaluru.
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Key milestones, events and achievements:

Date/Fiscal
September
11, 1986
2002
2019
2020

2020

2020
2021
2021
2022

2022
2022
2022

2022
2022
2022

Particulars
Incorporation of our Company as a private limited company

Certificate of registration issued by RBI to our Company to act as non-deposit taking NBFC
Received Best Employer Award by Employer Branding Institute — India

Indel Digital Gold Loan was launched to offer existing customers an opportunity to seek
additional credit.

Indel Money launched Lambaa Loans — 2- year gold loan scheme to support the cash and liquidity
requirements of both individuals as well as small businesses.

Introduced Door Step Gold Loan

Received 2™ Best Design Idea for our Door Step Gold Loan from Banking Frontier

Received award for Best brand and Leader — AsiaOne Magazine

CRISIL upgraded the rating as ‘CRISIL BBB/ Stable’ (read as ‘Triple B; Outlook: Stable’) for
borrowings

Indel Money Private Limited converted as Indel Money Limited

Awarded as Great Place to work

Successful completion of the maiden public issue of non-convertible debentures and its listing on
BSE

Partnered with IndusInd Bank for India’s first conventional gold loan co-lending

Geography expanded to Odisha

Acuite upgraded the rating as ‘BBB+/ Stable’ (read as ‘Triple B Plus; Outlook: Stable’)
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 29t September, 2022 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Office No.301,
Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West Mumbai Mumbai City Maharashtra 400080
India to transact the following Business:

Ordinary Business:-

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31% March, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
the Auditors.

To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2022, Statement of Profit
and Loss, cash flow statement and notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022
along with report of Board of directors and auditors thereon and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“"RESOLVED THAT the Company do hereby adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on March
31, 2022, Statement of Profit and Loss, cash flow statement and notes on accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2022 along with report of Board of directors and auditors thereon for
the year ending on that date.”

2. To appoint Mr. Anantharaman Trikkur Ramachandran, who is retiring by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment as a Director.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Anantharaman Trikkur Ramachandran (DIN: 05262157), who retires by rotation at this
meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. Appointment of M/s. Bhatter & Co, Chartered accountants, Mumbai as statutory auditor of

the company for a period of five years.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution:

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
ﬁw?:lreplolzac;ielsce)fg%eangampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O Registered Office
Ernakulam, Kerala, India, PIN: 682033 Office No.301, Floor No 3, Sai Arcade
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act") and other applicable provisions of the Act, if any and Rules framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time, M/s. Bhatter & Co, Chartered Accountants, 307, Tulsiani
Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai — 400 021 and is hereby appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for the term of five years from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
for the financial year 2026-2027 and that their remuneration be fixed by the Board of Directors
of the Company.”

Special Business:-
4, To increase remuneration of Ms. Kavitha Menon, Director of the company

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution as
a Special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 197 read with Schedule V
and all other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and recommendation of
Board of Directors, approval of members be and is hereby accorded for increase in
remuneration of Ms. Kavitha Menon, Director of the company from Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Five Thousand) per month to Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand) per month with
effect from 01 April, 2022;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director of the company be and is hereby authorised to file
the necessary documents/forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose
of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”.

5. To increase remuneration of Mr. Salil Venu, Director of the company

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution as
a Special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 197 read with Schedule V
and all other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and recommendation of
Board of Directors, approval of members be and is hereby accorded for increase in
remuneration of Mr. Salil Venu, Director of the company from Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy
Five Thousand) per month to Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh) per month with effect from
01t April, 2022;

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director of the company be and is hereby authorised to file
the necessary documents/forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose
of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board
Date: 13.08.2022 For, Indel Money Limited
Place: Kochi

Sd/-
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan

Managing Director
DIN: 02456142

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”)
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him and the proxy
need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy should,
however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-
eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. Members/Proxies should bring duly filled Attendance Slips sent herewith to attend the
meeting.

4. The relevant details as required under Secretarial Standard-2 [SS-2], of person seeking
appointment / re-appointment as Directors under Item Nos. 2 of this Notice are
annexed as Annexure.

5. The AGM shall be held at the Registered office of the Company at Office No.301, Floor
No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West Mumbai Mumbai City Maharashtra- 400080
India.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the Statement is open for inspection
by the members at the registered office of the company on all working days, during
business hours up to the date of the meeting.

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT FURNISHED PURSUANT TO THE
SECRETARIAL STANDARD -2

1. MR. ANANTHARAMAN T R

Name of Director ANANTHARAMAN TRIKKUR RAMACHANDRAN
Date of birth 26.05.1975

Age 47 years

Qualification CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Expertise in specific functional area | FINANCE

Experience 15 years

Terms & conditions LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION
Date of first appointment on the 05.07.2012

board

No: of shares held in the Company -

Relationships between Directors / -
KMP’s inter-se

Number of Meetings of the Board 5
attended during the year 2021-22

Directorships held in other -
Companies (excludes foreign
companies, private companies and
alternate directorship)

Membership/Chairmanship of other -
Public Companies (include only Audit
Committee and Stakeholder
Relationship Committee)
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ROUTE MAP FOR THE VENUE OF AGM
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Office No.301, Floor No.3,
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Mulund West Mumbai

Mumbai City Maharashtra- 400080 India.
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Form No. MGT 11
Proxy Form
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

CIN : U65990MH1986PLC040897
Name of Company : INDEL MONEY LIMITED
Registered Office : Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund West

Mumbai Mumbai City Maharashtra- 400080 India.

Name of the Member(s)
Registered address

Email ID
Folio No/Client ID
DP ID :
I/We, being the member(s) of ............ shares of the above hame company, hereby appoint
1. Name:
Address:
Email Id:
Signature :............... , or failing him
2. Name:
Address:
Email Id:
Signature: ............... , or failing him

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my / our behalf at
the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the 29th day of
September 2022 at 10 am at Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road, Mulund
West Mumbai Mumbai City Maharashtra- 400080 India, and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No:

Affix Revenue
Signed this ............... day of ...ccooveiinene Stamp
Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
&(gSIOLa;Ssgfgizngampuzha Nagar, South Kalamassery P.O Registered Office
Ernakulam, Kerala, India, PIN: 682033 Office No.301. Floor No 3. Sai Arcade
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
[Pursuant to Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013]

Item No. 4. To increase remuneration of Ms. Kavitha Menon, Director of the
company

As per Section 197 of the companies Act, 2013, the total managerial remuneration payable by
a public company, to its directors, including managing director and whole-time director, and
its manager in respect of any financial year shall not exceed 11% of the net profits of that
company for that financial year computed in the manner laid down in section 198 except that
the remuneration of the directors shall not be deducted from the gross profits. Section 197
also stipulate that the (i)remuneration payable to any one managing director; or whole-time
director or manager shall not exceed 5% of the net profits of the company and if there is
more than one such director remuneration shall not exceed 10% of the net profits to all such
directors and manager taken together and (ii) the remuneration payable to directors who are
neither managing directors nor whole-time directors shall not exceed 1% the net profits of
the company, if there is a managing or whole-time director or manager. However a company
can pay remuneration in excess of the limit specified in Section 197, if approval of the
members obtained by way of special resolution.

Considering the contribution and expertisation of Ms. Kavitha Menon, the Board of Directors
of the company in its meeting held on 25% July, 2022 has approved the revision of monthly
pay of Ms. Kavitha Menon of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand) per month with effect from
01st April, 2022, subject to the approval of shareholders of the company by way of Special
resolution.

As per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, the aforementioned revision of remuneration
of Ms. Kavitha Menon exceeding 1% of the Net Profit of the company is subject to the approval
of shareholders of the company in General Meeting and therefore, the shareholders of the
company are required to approve the aforementioned revision of managerial remuneration of
Mr. Kavitha Menon, Director of the company by passing a Special resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the special resolution set out at item no. 4 for approval
of members.

Ms. Kavitha Menon, Whole time director is interested in this resolution as same relates to his
revision of remuneration.

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives is concerned or interested in the passing of the Resolution

Indel Money Limited (Formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited”)
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Item No. 5. To increase remuneration of Mr. Salil Venu, Director of the compan

As per Section 197 of the companies Act, 2013, the total managerial remuneration payable by
a public company, to its directors, including managing director and whole-time director, and
its manager in respect of any financial year shall not exceed 11% of the net profits of that
company for that financial year computed in the manner laid down in section 198 except that
the remuneration of the directors shall not be deducted from the gross profits. Section 197
also stipulate that the (i)remuneration payable to any one managing director; or whole-time
director or manager shall not exceed 5% of the net profits of the company and if there is
more than one such director remuneration shall not exceed 10% of the net profits to all such
directors and manager taken together and (ii) the remuneration payable to directors who are
neither managing directors nor whole-time directors shall not exceed 1% the net profits of
the company, if there is a managing or whole-time director or manager. However a company
can pay remuneration in excess of the limit specified in Section 197, if approval of the
members obtained by way of special resolution.

Based on the services rendered by director to the company and his expertise and experience
in the industry, the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 22" July, 2022
has approved the revision of monthly pay of Mr. Salil Venu, a consolidated amount of Rs.
1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh) per month with effect from 01t April, 2022, subject to the
approval of shareholders of the company by way of Special resolution.

As per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, the aforementioned revision of remuneration
of Mr. Salil Venu exceeding 1% of the Net Profit of the company is subject to the approval of
shareholders of the company in General Meeting and therefore, the shareholders of the
company are required to approve the aforementioned revision of managerial remuneration of
Mr. Salil Venu, Director of the company by passing a Special resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the special resolution set out at item no. 5 for approval
of members.

Mr. Salil Venu, Director is interested in this resolution as same relates to his revision of
remuneration.

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives is concerned or interested in the passing of the Resolution

By the Order of the Board of Directors

For INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Date: 13.08.2022 Sd/-
Place: Kochi
Mohanan Gopalakrishnan
Managing Director
DIN: 02456142
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members

The Board of Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Thirty-Sixth Annual
Report on the business and operations of the company together with the Audited

statements of Accounts for the financial Year ended 315t March, 2022.

Share Capital

The Authorized Capital of the company was increased from ¥ 85,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Eighty-Five Crores only) divided into 8,50,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees ten
only) each to ¥ 125,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Twenty-Five Crores only)
divided into 12,50,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees ten only) each during the
financial year. The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the company was
increased from ¥ 82,14,69,790/- (Rupees Eighty-Two Crores Fourteen Lakhs Sixty-
Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety only) divided into 8,21,46,979 equity shares of
¥ 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to ¥ 93,14,69,790 (Rupees Ninety-Three Crores
Fourteen Lakhs Sixty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety only) divided into
9,31,46,979 equity shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees ten only) each during the financial year.

Issue of Sweat Equity shares

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the period.

Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees
The Company has not provided any money for the purchase of its own shares by its

employees or trustees for the benefit of employees.

State of Affairs of the Company

Performance of the company:
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(in lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue 12,300.44 9,466.42
Expenses 11,802.89 8,312.06
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional, Extra-Ordinary 497.55 1,154.36
and Prior Period items

Prior Period items 0.00 0.00
Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax 497.55 1,154.36
Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
Profit before Tax 497.55 1,154.36
Tax Expenses (286.32) (279.60)
Profit / (Loss) for the period after Tax 211.23 874.76

Registration as a Non-Deposit Taking NBFC

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial
Company (Non-Deposit taking) and holds a valid certificate of registration. The
Company has been regular in complying with all the applicable regulations, circulars

etc. issued by the RBI from time to time.

The Company being a non-deposit taking NBFC has complied with all applicable
regulations of the Reserve Bank of India except as mentioned in the secretarial audit
report. As per Non-Banking Finance Companies RBI Directions, 1998, the Directors
hereby report that the Company did not accept any public deposits during the year
and is not having public deposits outstanding at the end of the year.

Change in the nature of Business

The Company was converted from a private limited company to a public limited
company with effect from 26" Day of Aug 2021 during the financial year. The main
object of the company has been amended by entering the new clause by passing a
special resolution in the EGM held on 07% day of July 2021.

Dividend

The Company has not declared any dividend during or for the financial year.

Reserves

No amount is proposed to be transferred to General Reserve during the year.
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Change in Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Anantharaman Trikkur Ramachandran (DIN: 05262157), a director of the
Company, retire by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment in
the ensuing 34% Annual General Meeting of the Company. No other changes occurred
in the composition of Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Narayanan Pisharam,
was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company during the financial
year.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received the necessary declaration from the Independent Directors
in accordance with Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the
criteria of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Directors Responsibility Statement

The Directors of the Company hereby confirm:

i. that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 315t March,
2022, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with

proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. that the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year

under review;

iii. that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. that the directors have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis;

v. that the Directors, as the Company is not listed, is not required to lay down the

internal financial controls to be followed by the Company; and

vi. That the Directors has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and

operating effectively.
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Particulars regarding conservation of energy and foreign exchange earnings

and outflow:

a. Conservation of energy : NA

b. Technology absorption : NA

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outflow
a. Foreign Exchange Earnings : NIL

b. Foreign Exchange Outflow : NIL

Particulars of Employees

There are no employees in the Company who are receiving remuneration in excess of
the limit specified in under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and therefore there is no information required to be given. There is no
foreign exchange earnings and out go during the financial year.

Risk Management and Internal Financial Control System

The Company’s Risk Management Policy deals with identification, mitigation and
management of risks across the organization. And the Board of Directors has
constituted a Risk Management Committee to take care of subsistent implantation of
the said policy. This has been dealt with the Management Discussion and Analysis
annexed to the Annual Report.

The Company’s well-defined organizational structure, documented policy guidelines,
defined authority matrix and internal financial controls ensure operational
effectiveness, reliability of financial data and compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and Company’s policies.

The financial control framework includes internal controls, delegation of authority
procedures, segregation of duties, system access controls, and document filing and
storage procedures. The Internal Auditor ensures the continued effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system. The Audit Committee reviews internal financial
control reports prepared by the internal auditor. The Company has framed risk based
internal audit policy as part of its oversight function. The objective of risk based
internal audit review is to identify the key activities and controls in the business
processes, review effectiveness of business processes and controls, assess the
operating effectiveness of internal controls and provide recommendations for business

process and internal control improvement.
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Auditors and Audit Report

The Companies accounts for the year ended 31.03.2022 were audited by M/s. FRG &
Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai. They were appointed as the Statutory
Auditor of the Company from the conclusion of Thirty-Second Annual General Meeting

till the conclusion of the Thirty-Sixth Annual General Meeting.

In compliance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. FRG & Company,
Chartered Accountants had communicated to the Company their inability to continue
to hold office as Statutory Auditors of the Company as they had already completed
the tenure of ten consecutive financial years and had communicated their intention

to resign.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors in their respective meetings took note of
the said communication received from the previous Statutory Auditors and had passed
resolutions to recommend to the Members of the Company for the approval of the
appointment of M/s Bharat Gupta & Co, Chartered Accountants as new Statutory
Auditors of the Company for five consecutive financial years ending on 31.03.2027.
And approval of the members is also being sought for appointment of M/s Bharat
Gupta & Co, Chartered Accountants as the new Statutory Auditors and fixation of their

remuneration.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The CSR Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 is annexed to this report as Annexure
I. The composition of CSR Committee and the details of the ongoing CSR projects/
programs/activities are included in the CSR report/section. The CSR Policy is uploaded

on the Company’s website.

Meetings of the Board
The Company held Five (5) Board meetings during the financial year under review.
Proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in
the Minutes Book as required by the Articles of Association of the Company and the
Act.
Date of Board Meetings:

26.06.2021 28.08.2021 14.12.2021 12.02.2022 31.03.2022
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General Meeting

Thirty-Five Annual General Meeting was held on 29™ September 2021. No Extra
Ordinary General Meetings were held during the financial year other than meetings
held on 07.07.2021, 16.08.2021 and 04.03.2022.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board has delegated some of its powers to its committees. These committees
monitor matters that come under their mandate, in more detail. These committees
are:

a. Audit Committee

The Company has constituted a qualified Audit Committee as required under Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per Sec 177(4) of the Companies Act 2013, the Audit Committee shall act according
to the terms of reference specified by the Board in writing which shall include:

i. therecommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment
of auditors of the Company;

ii. review and monitor the auditor’'s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

iii. examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

iv. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with
related parties;

v. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vi. valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

vii. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viii.monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related
matters.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

i. Review of the financial statements (including interim financial statements) and
oversight of the financial reporting process with a view to ensuring
transparency and accuracy of financial reporting and disclosures, prior to their
submission to the Board for approval.

ii. Review of the scope of work of the Auditors, prior to commencement of the
audit and, holding appropriate discussions on the matters that arose during
the audit.

iii. Review of the robustness and effectiveness of the internal control systems in
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place in the Company.

iv. Recommending to the Board the appointment, reappointment, and if required,
the replacement or removal of the Statutory Auditors and the fixation of audit
fee.

v. Reviewing the effectiveness of internal audit including the independence of the
internal audit function, the adequacy of staffing and the coverage, scope and
frequency of audits.

vi. Review the functioning of whistle blower mechanism.

The Audit Committee is comprised of:

Name Nature of | Designation No of Meetings
Directorship Attended
Mr. N S Venkatesh Non-Executive Chairman 4

Independent Director

Mr. Sasikumar Non-Executive Member 4

Independent Director

Mr. Anantharaman T | Non - Executive Director | Member 4
R

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 26t April 2021, 28" August 2021,
14" December 2021 and 12" February 2022 during the financial year

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
As per the provisions of Sec.178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has

constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) with the following

members:

Name Nature of Directorship Designation

Mr. C R Sasikumar Non-Executive Independent | Chairman
Director

Mr. S Ganesh Non-Executive Independent | Member
Director

Mr. Anantharaman T R Non-Executive Director Member

Mr. Salil Venu Non-Executive Director Member
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No meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the
financial year.

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per the provisions of Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board.

The CSR Committee is comprised of:

Name Nature of Directorship Designation No of
Meetings
Attended
Mr. S Ganesh Non-Executive Independent | Chairman 1
Director
Mr. C R Sasikumar | Non-Executive Independent | Member 1
Director
Mr. Umesh Mohanan | Whole Time Director Member 1
Mr. Salil Venu Non-Executive Director Member 1

One meeting of the CSR Committee was held on 12 February 2022, during the

financial year.

Other Committees
In compliance with the relevant Master Directions of the Reserve Bank of India, the
Company has also constituted the following Committees:
i. Risk Management Committee
The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee as per the RBI Master
Direction on Corporate Governance.
The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are:
Assisting the Board in the articulation of its risk appetite.
Overseeing the implementation and maintenance of a sound system of risk
management framework which identifies, assess, manages and monitors risk.
c. Recommend to the Board, clear standards of ethical behavior required of
Directors and employees and to encourage observance of these standards.
d. Assessment of the Company's risk profile and key areas of risk in particular.

e. Examining and determining the sufficiency of the Company’s internal
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processes for reporting on and managing key risk areas.

The members of the Committee are given below:

Name Nature of Directorship | Designation
Mr. Umesh Mohanan Whole Time Director Chairman
Mr. Salil Venu Non-Executive Director Member

Mr. Anantharaman T R Non-Executive Director Member

Formal Annual Evaluation
The Company has in place a formal evaluation framework for assessing the

performance of Directors comprising of the following key areas:

i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings.

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations, safeguarding the interest of the
Company, independence of judgment, level of engagement and contribution.

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of the Company and
its performance.

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond the information provided
by the Management.

v. Commitment to shareholders’ and other stakeholders’ interests.

The evaluation involves self-evaluation by each Board Member and subsequently
assessment by the Board of Directors. A member of the Board will not participate in
the discussion of his / her evaluation.

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and
Securities provided

Our Company is engaged in the business of financial services as nothing contained
in this Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to loans, guarantees or
investments made by the Company during the year under review and hence the said
provision is not applicable.

Disclosure

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under
review:

a. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act 2013.

b. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
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c. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company
under any scheme.

d. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company's operations in
future.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties

All transaction entered into during the financial year with related parties that

requires disclosure under 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
contracts or arrangements referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of

business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the

Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated

persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at

large. Form AOC- 2 is attached as Annexure II.

Secretarial Audit

Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies

Act, 2013 for the financial year 2021-22 issued by Mr. Fayiz Mohammed Kassim,

Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No. 22481) (Membership No.

ACS 53236) is annexed to this report as Annexure-III. The report does not contain

any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Fair Practices Code

The Company has framed a Fair Practices Code (FPC) as per the provisions contained

in Chapter V of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Non-Deposit taking

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism

In compliance to the provisions of Para 32 of the Master Direction - Non-Banking

Financial Company -Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Non-

Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the Company has a

dedicated Customer Grievance Cell for receiving and handling customer complaints

and ensuring that the customers are always treated fairly and without bias. All issues

raised by customers are dealt with courtesy and resolved expeditiously.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has
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adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment

at workplace as per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act’) and Rules
made thereunder.

With the objective of providing a safe environment, the Company has constituted
Internal Committee to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees - permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees are covered under this
Policy.

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Company has not received any complaints
of sexual harassment.

Material changes and commitments affecting financial position between the
end of the financial year and date of report

There is no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of financial year and date of report.

Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture companies included in the consolidated financial
statement.

Since the Holding Company, Indel Corporation Private Limited consolidates the
financial statement of all subsidiaries, the Company is exempted from consolidation
of financial statements as per Rule 6 of Companies Accounts Rules, 2014.
Acknowledgement

The Directors place on record of their deep appreciation to all the staff, members

and to all those concerned for the valuable services, during the year under report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

MOHANAN GOPALAKRISHNAN UMESH MOHANAN
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 02456142 DIN: 02455902

Place: Ernakulam
Date: 25.07.2022
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ANNEXURE I- TO THE BOARD REPORT

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities for the Financial Year

2021-22

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy:

Indel Money Limited is committed to operate and grow its business as a socially responsible
corporate citizen and contribute for possible social, educational and environmental causes on
a regular basis. Accordingly, the Company has a board approved CSR Policy in place which
encompasses the company’s philosophy for delineating its responsibility as a corporate Citizen
and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for carrying out socially useful activities/ projects
and programmes for welfare, sustainability and development of the community at large.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

3.

6.

7.

Mr. Sethuraman Ganesh, Independent Director (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Sasikumar C R - Member

Mr. Umesh Mohanan - Member

Mr. Salil Venu — Member

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Weblink for the abovementioned details is https://www.indelmoney.com/csr/

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report): Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any: NIL

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 5,62,68,428 /-.

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 11,26,000 (

Rounded Off)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+ 7b- 7¢): Rs. 11,26,000/

. (@) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent
Spent for the (in Rs.)
Financial

Year

(in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Unspent CSR Account as | under Schedule VII as per second proviso
per Section 135(6) to section 135(5)
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Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
Rs. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
11,26,000/

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

S. Name of the | Item Local Location of the | Amount Mode Mode of
No. | Project from area project spent on | of implementation -
the list of | (Yes/N the implem | Through
activities | 0). project/ entatio | implementing
in program (in | n Direct | agency
schedule State District Rs.) (Yes/N | Name. | CSR
VII to 0) registr
the Act. ation
numbe
r.
1. Promoting Promotio | No Kerala | Trivandr | Rs. No Santhig | CSR00
education n of um 5,01,000 iri 007322
educatio Ashram
n '
Santhig
iri P.O,
Pothen
code,
Thiruva
nantha
puram,
Kerala,
695589
2. Medical aid Promotio | No Kerala | Trivandr | Rs. No Santhig | CSR00
n of um 6,25,000 iri 007322
healthca Ashram
re ,
Santhig
iri P.O,
Pothen
code,
Thiruva
nantha
puram,
Kerala,
695589
Total CSR expenditure for FY 2021-22 Rs.
11,26,000/
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 11,26,000/
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL
INDEL
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable
(Asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc: N.A

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset): N.A

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5): N.A

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Rules (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, Mr. Umesh Mohanan, Executive
Director /CEO and Mr. Sethuraman Ganesh, Chairman of CSR Committee, do confirm that the
implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Indel Money Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Umesh Mohanan Sethuraman Ganesh
Whole Time Director Chairman - CSR Committee
DIN: 02455902 DIN: 07152185
Place: Ernakulam
Date: July 25, 2022
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Annexure - I1
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

I Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: N.A

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: N.A

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: N.A

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: N.A
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board: N.A
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188: N.A

II Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length
basis:

1.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Indel Corporation Private
Limited - Holding Company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Rent Deposit and Advance Paid
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 21,18,48,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.06.2021
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

2.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Indel Automotives Private
Limited — Fellow subsidiary company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Interest received
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(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 16,59,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.06.2021
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A
3.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: M-Star Satellite Communication
Private Limited — Company in which directors or their relatives exercise control

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Interest received

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 1,94,00,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.06.2021

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

4,

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Wind Flower Consultancy -
Firm in which directors or their relatives exercise control

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Consultation Fee received

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥ 39,92,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.06.2021

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

5.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mr. Mohanan Gopalakrishnan =
Individual exercising control over the company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Interest paid

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if

any: ¥ 2,96,000/-
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.06.2021

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A
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6.

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mr. Umesh Mohanan -
Individual exercising control over the company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Interest and advance paid
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: ¥1,21,70,000/-

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 26.06.2021

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

MOHANAN GOPALAKRISHNAN UMESH MOHANAN
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 02456142 DIN: 02455902

Place: Ernakulam
Date: 25.07.2022
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FAVYIL G RSSOCITES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

INDEL MONEY LIMITED

Office No.301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade N.S Road
Mulund West Mumbai

Maharashtra - 400 080

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by INDEL MONEY LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company, books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2022 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject

to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2022

according to the provisions of:
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made
there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there
under;

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial borrowings (Not Applicable)

(v) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(vi)Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016

I/we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).
(Not Applicable)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.
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1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Date: 11.07.2022 FAYIZ MOHAMMED KASSIM
Place: Ernakulam Practicing Company Secretary
Mem No. A53236
C.P No. 22481
UDIN: A053236D000596625
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( ) 7th Floor, Wing B, Supreme Business Park,
% F R G & COMPANY Behind Lake Castle Building, Hiranandani

] CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Gardens, Powai Mumbai 400 076.
- . Contact N0.9004054208
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF
INDEL MONEY LIMITED

(formerly known as Indel Money Private Limited),

Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Indel Money Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the

year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2022, the Profit and total
comprehensive profit, changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.




Sr.No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

1

Expected Credit Loss under IND AS
109 “Financial Instruments”

| The Company recognises Expected
| Credit Losses (ECL) on loan assets under
' IND AS 109 “Financial Instruments”
' based on the Expected Credit Loss model
| developed by the Company. The
estimation of expected credit loss on
financial instruments involves significant
Judgement and estimates. Key estimates
involve determining Exposure at Default
(EAD), Probability at Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD) using
historical information. Hence, we have
considered the estimation of ECL as a
Key Audit Matter.

Assessed the accounting policy for impairment
of financial assets and its compliance with IND
AS 109.

* Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation and
the underlying assumptions.

* Tested the key controls over the assessment
and identification of significant increase in
credit risk and staging of assets.

+ Sample testing of the accuracy and
appropriateness of information used in the
estimation of Probability of Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD).

*+ Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
computation of PD and LGD and also
performed analytical procedures to verify the
reasonableness of the computation.

* Assessed the disclosure made in relation to
IND AS 109 for ECL allowance. Further, we
also assessed whether the disclosure of key
Jjudgements and assumptions are adequate.

IT Systems and Controls

The Company uses Information
Technology (IT) application for financial
accounts and reporting process. Any gap
in the financial accounting and reporting
process may result in a misstatement,
hence we have identified IT systems and
controls over financial reporting as a Key
Audit Matter.

Understood the IT systems and controls over
key financial accounting and reporting
systems.

* Tested the general IT controls for design and
operating effectiveness.

* Understood the changes made in the IT
environment during the year and ascertained
its effect on the financial statements controls
and accounts.

* We also assessed, through sample tests, the
information generated from these systems
which were relied upon for our audit.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.




Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to preparation of these standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
provisions of the Act for safeguarding assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.




Evaluate appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
dagclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the

Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books of accounts;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;




e)

g)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March 2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms
of sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Act:

With respect to adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting
of the Company and operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure ‘B’; and

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during
the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed its pending litigations in its financial statements
which would impact its financial position other than those mentioned in the
Notes No. 43 to the accounts;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) As per the information and explanation given to us by the
management, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management,
no funds have been received by the company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and




(¢) On the basis of above representations, nothing has come to our notice that

has caused us to believe that the above representations contained any material
mis-statement.

V.. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For FRG & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 023258N
UDIN: 22128959AJWUZ12952

CA. Rajesh Tiwari
Partner

Membership No: 128959
Date  : May 30, 2022
Place : Kochi



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure ‘A’ referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in

ourreport to members of INDEL MONEY LIMITED (“the Company™) for the year ended 3 Ist
March, 2022.

We report that:

i. In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

(@ (A)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment;

(B)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible Asset.;

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of Property, Plant &
Equipment which is, in our opinion, reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain
Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification;

(c) According to the information and explanations received by us, as the Company owns
no immovable properties, the requirement on reporting whether title deeds of
immovable properties held in the name of the Company is not applicable.;

(d) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
during the year and hence provisions of Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company;

(e) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of | 988) and rules
made thereunder and hence provisions of Clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

ii. In respect of its inventories:

' (a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its business does not require
maintenance of inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company;

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of H 5 Crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
In our opinion, the quarterly statements filed with banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books

(a) The principal business of the Company is to give loans, hence the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company




Vi.

vii.

(b) During the year the investments made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees
are, in our opinion, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Being a
Non-Banking (Non- Deposit Taking Systematically Important) Finance Compan.y. there
are instances where the repayment of principal and interest are not as per the stipulated
terms.

(d

In respect of loans and advances granted by the Company, and amount overdut? for more
than ninety days. In our opinion and according to the information and explanapor]s given
to us, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and
interest.

(e

The principal business of the Company is to give loans, hence the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(f

—

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Hence the requirement
to report loans granted to promoters, related parties as defined in clause 76 of section 2 of
the Act or to any other parties on clause 3(iii) () of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees given, where applicable. The Company has not provided any
security for which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits during the year which attract the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
Being a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, the provisions
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there
under regarding acceptance of deposits are not applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act for the Company.

(a). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has generally been regular in depositing any undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and
services tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2022, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(t_J) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to ys there are no
disputed amounts dues to be deposited in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund

employees’ state insurance, sales tax, duty of customs duty of excise, value add
' ’ ’ ) ed tax an
as at March 31, 2022, and cess




viil,

Xi.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the b_asis
of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no instances of any transactions
not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on Ihe
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or any other lender.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans for the purpose for which they were
obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report

that no funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie not been utilized for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any

funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures,

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not raised monies by way of initial public offer
or further public offer except for the public offer of debt instruments.

According to the information and explanation provided to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, the monies raised by way of public offer of debt instruments during the year
were applied for the purposes for which those were raised.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made
preferential allotment of equity shares during the year and the requirements of Section 42 and

Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been complied with and the funds raised have been
used for the purpose for which fund was raised.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, there have been instances of fraud on the Company amounting to Rs 94.65 lacs as included
in Note 42 to the standalone financial statements. No fraud by the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government during the year by the Statutory Auditors and up to the date of this Report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received

by the Company during the year.
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Xil.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvil.

xviii.

Xix.

Section 406 of the Companies Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as prescribed under
) of the Order is not applicable.

Accordingly, the reporting requirement under clause 3 (xii

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transa_ctions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where apphca.ble.
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required

by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

planned program approved by the management
We have considered, during the course
he year under audit in accordance
f Internal Auditors issued by the

(b) The internal audit is performed as per a
and those charged with governance of the Company.
of our audit, the reports of the branch internal audits for t
with the guidance provided in SA 610 *Using the Work o
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the

Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence reporting requirement under Clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and is required to obtain Registration
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and such registration has been

obtained.

(b) The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) for conducting Non-Banking Financial activities and no business has been conducted by

the Company without a valid CoR.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC)as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under clause 3 (xvi)(c)

of the Order is not applicable.

(d) As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no core investment companies
as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India as part of its group and hence
the reporting requirements under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, and hence provisions of
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a




XX.

For FRG & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 023258N
UDIN: 22128959AJWUZI2952

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due;

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies

Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the said Act for the
year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not transferred any unspent amount under
sub section 5 of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to ongoing projects to a special
account in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Companies Act.

CA. Rajesh Tiwari

Partner

Membership No: 128959

Date
Place

: May 30, 2022
: Kochi



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indel Money _Limlted (‘the
Company’) as of 31" March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial c.ontr.ols
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company congdenpg
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntern'fll F mant:l’al
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants qf India (‘lCAIl )-
These responsibilities include design, implementation and maintenance of adequate mterpal f'mz_mcml
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring orderly and efficient confiuct of its bus§mess,
including adherence to Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detect!on of
frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls . Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial control over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such control operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about adequacy of the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating design and operating effectiveness of the internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or eITor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi

the . : cient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls System over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements
ror external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal ﬁpanmal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to [he‘ maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
Eiccepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
re_asonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31% March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For FRG & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 023258N
UDIN: 22128959AJWUZI2952

CA. Rajesh Tiwari
Partner

Membership No: 128959
Date : May 30, 2022
Place : Kochi



INDEL MONEY LIMITED

(formerly known o “Indel Momey Private Limited™)
e N 301 Floor No | S drcad ¥ S Reod Mshend Wew Mumbar - J0 050
Balance Sheet o of March 31, 2012

(2 m Jakhs)
As al e
Nate —= T
1 March 31, 2012 M April 1, 2020

ASSETS ‘ o
(1) Finsncial Assets
M:‘Lsﬁlﬁcmw s 788015 719 58 628 58
i) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaients 6 1,005 12 649 24 .
i(c) Recervables

(1) Trade recervables i o =
Other recervabies A ;

. o i 553280 4,039 68 1654 20
o e s 2367129 39.806 77 33571 35
. . 1200 1200 1200

£) Other firancal asscts 10 92117 4240 45280
(2) Non-financial Assets
(2) Current tax assets (Net) 11 89320 23370 204 30
(b) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 12 23633 187 56 107.63
(<) Property. plam and equipment 1 85282 653 47 697.65
- eaiones 14 327308 307012 2,491 45
5 SR Is 7655 19.11 15.04
() Other non-financial assets 16 62786 40990 296.42

TOTAL ASSETS 7367937 50,2354 10,131.42
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(2) Payables

(1) Trade payables 17(1)
(1) Toal outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises . E
(i1) Total outstanding dues of crediters other than
rmicro and small enterprises - 5
(1) Other payables 17(1)
(1) Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises = .
(1) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 3407 3842 1627

(b} Debt secunties 18 15,949 40 5.166.51 3.78245

() Barrongs (Other than Debt Secunities) 19 25,298 56 19,492.88 17,216 60

(d) Deposits . § -

(¢) Subordinated Liabilities 20 19,020.70 14,758.05 9.963.70

(1) Crher financial liabilities 2] 3,13096 1,90227 1,141 55

(2) Non-financial Liabilitics

‘a) Provisions 2 14047 67 56 9217

{b) Other non-financial habilibes 2 57157 36.45 3560

LOUITY

(a) Equity share apnal 2 931470 821470 8,214 70

() Othes equity 2 73294 546.70 (331 62)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 73,67937 50,223.54 A 40,131.42

Motes un accounts form part of standalone financial statements

As per our repor of even date attached
For FR(; & Company
Chartered Accountants »

lkce-sM

Rajesh Tiwari
(Partner)

Membership No | 28%59
Place  Kochi

Date  30-May-2022

wds?

Company Secrelary
UD'N .. 2'1 \2-8‘1 Sc\MN UZIQ.‘\S')_ Membership No AS1727
Place  Koch

Dale 30-May-2022

"
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INDEL MONEY LIMITED
(formerly known as "Indel Money Private Limited")
Office No 301, Floor No 3, Sar Arcade N S Rood, Mulund Wese. Mumbai - 400 050
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended
I B Nolte number March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Revenue from operations
1§}] Interest income 26 12231 ) 943290
() Dwidend income A .
(m)  Fees and commission income P 1908 2252
() Net gain on fair value changes . ’
(v)  Sale of products
(vi)  Sale of services . -
U] Total revenue from operations 12,270.31 9,455.42
(I Other income 28 3013 11.00
(1) Tortal income (1) + (11) 12,300.44 9,466.42
Eapenses
(1) Finance costs 29 6,705 21 4,716.81
(1) Fees and commission expenses = N
(i) Net loss on fair value change N :
(iv)  Lmpainment of financial instruments 30 12632 4548
(v)  Employce benefit expenses 31 2,776.12 1,794 78
(vi)  Depreciation, amortisation and impairment n 803 94 66037
(vii)  Other expenses 33 1,39130 1,094.62
(IV)  Total expenses 11,802.89 8,312.06
(V) Profit/ (loss) before tax (111 - 1V) 497.58 1,154.36
(V1) Taxexpenses
(1) Current tax 285 60 36073
(1) Deferred tax 072 (81.13)
(VL) Profit/ (loss) for the period (V) - (V1) 211.23 874.76
(V1) OTHER COMPREINENSIVE INCOME
(A) (i) {tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain/ loss on defined benefit plan (33.40) 4.75
(ii) Income tax relating to items the above g4l (1.19)
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (24.99) 3.56
(IX) TOTAL COMPREIENSIVE INCOME
FOR TIIE PERIOD (V11 + VIII) 186.24 878.32
(X)  Earnings per share 34
Basic () 026 1.06
Diluted (3) 026 1.06
Face value per share () 1000 10.00

Notes on accounts form part of standalone financial statements
As per out report of even date attached

For FRG & Company For and on behalf of the boar
Chartered Accountants Indel Mgney Lin
(Rgwistration No IJ‘ZSBN)

Rajesh Tiwari
(Pariner)

Membership No. 128959
Place - Kocht

Date  30-May-2022

Hldhinn PP NeZir Naraypnarg Ifi
Company Secretary Chief Kinan|
VOIN! 2212 3959ATWUZ T 2982 MembershipNo AS1727
Place - Kochi

Date - 30-May-2022




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
(formerly known as "Indel Money Private Limited")
Office No 301, Floor No 3. Sai Arcade N S Road Mulund West. Mumbai - 400 080
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended

March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

I CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 197 55 1,154.36
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 803.94 660.37
Impairment of financial instruments 126.32 15.48
Finance costs 6,705.21 471681
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset
Provision for gratuity 3325 15.29
Provision for compensated absences 1237 (34.02)
Operating profit before working capital changes 8,178.64 6,558.29
(Increase)/ decrease in receivables (1,193.12) (2,385.48)
(Increase) decrease in other bank balances (356.88) (649.24)
(Increase)/ decrease in loans (12,686.84) (6,280.90)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (540.88) (43.05)
(Increase)/ decrease in other non-financial assets (217.96) (113.48)
Increase/ (decrease) in payables (4.35) 2215
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 6.11) (1.13)
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 341.07 (30.82)
Increase/ (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 18.28 40.20
Cash generated from/ (uscd in) operations (6,768.15) (2,883.46)
Finance costs paid (5.817.59) (3,925.27)
[ncome tax paid (986.18) (390.12)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (13,571.92) (7,198.85)
1. CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts (557.22) (495.46)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9.98 1.45
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (547.24) (494.01)
HL CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (decrease) in share capital 1,100.00 2
Increase/ (decrease) in debl securitics 10,782.89 1,384.06
Increase/ (decrease) in borrowings (other than debt securities) 513418 1,605.47
Increase/ (decrease) in subordinated liabilities 4,262.65 4,794.35
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities 21,279.12 7,783.88
IV, Netincrease/ (deereasc) in cash and cash equivalents 1,160.56 91.02
(T HIL+ 1T
V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 719.60 628.58
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end T580.16 719,

Notes on accounts form part of standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For FRG & Company For and on behalf of the hoard
Chartered Accountants ¢ Indel Money Limited ({ormerly
(Registration vo. 23258N)

10wn as "Indel Money Private imiled

Rajésh Tiwari Umesh Moha

(Partner) x Director /
Membership No. 124 5:} Reg. No. DIN No. l)l 5902
Place : Kochi 23258N

Date : 30-May-2022

Ilann}; PN /
UDIN' 22128959 ATWU 2T 2952 Company Sccretary
Membership No. A51727

Place : Kochi
Date : 30-May-2022




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
(formerly known as “Indel Money Private Limited")
Office No. 301, Floor No.3, Sai Arcade NS Road, Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

(T in lakhs)
A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(1) Current reporting period
Restated
(‘hangcs‘u in Equity | balance at the | C h.nnges in Balance as at
Balance as at | Share Capital due | beginning of | equity share
. March 31,
April 1, 2021 to prior period the current | capital during 2022
errors reporting the year
period
- 821470 - 8,214.70 1,100.00 9,31:.70
8,214.70 - §.214.70 1,100.00 9.314.70
(1) Previous reporting period
Restated
Changes in Equity | balance at the| Changes in
Balance as at | Share Capital due | beginning of | equity share Balssce ;s o
April 1, 2020 to prior period the current | capital during M.;;rl L
errors reporting the year
period
8.214.70 - 8214.70 - §.214.70
8,214.70 - 8.214.70 . 8,214.70 |
B. OTHER EQUITY
Items of other
Reserves and Surplus comprehensive
income
. Total other
Particulars Remeasureme equity
Retained Reserve Fund Impairment | ot gain/loss on
Earnings Reserve | defined benefit
plan
Balance as at April 1, 2021 459.14 15.06 68.94 3.56 546.70
Total comprehensive income 211.23 - - (24.99) 186.24
Transfer to/ from retained earnings (120.81) . 120.81 - -
Dividend . z - = s
Balance as at March 31,2022 549.56 15.06 189.75 (21.43) 732.94
(b) Previous reparting period
Items of other
Rescrves and Surplus comprehensive
income
i Total other
Particulars Remeasureme | oo yjpy
Retained Reserve Fund Impairment | nt gain/loss on
Earnings Reserve  |defined benefit
plan
Balance as at April 1, 2020 (392.18) 15.06 - - (377.12)
Ind AS transition adjustments (18.74) - 64.24 - 45.50
Restated balance as at April 1, 2020 (410.92) 15.06 64.24 (331.62)
Total comprehensive income §74.76 . . 3.56 §78.32
Transfer 1/ from rciamed carmings (4.70) . 4.70 )
Dividend v 3 . . 5
Balance as at March 31, 2021 459.14 15.06 68.94 3.56 546,70

Notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Per our report atiached to Balance Sheet

Dalte . 30-May-2022
Place: Kochi




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
[ndel Money Limited (formerly known as Indel Money Private Limited) (‘the Company') was incorporated on

September 11, 1986, in Mumbai, India. The Company is a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company which provides a wide range of fund based and fee-based services including gold loans, money
iransfer facilities ete. The Company had converted into a public limited company with effect from September
$,2021. The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of preparation
These standalone or separate financial statements of the Coampany have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as

amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™), in conformity with the
rally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application
en Lhey arc

accounting principles gene
guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and wh

issued/ applicable.

al statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2021 were prepared in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (IGAA P) under the historical cost
convention as a going concern and on accrual basis. unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended)
and prudential norms for income recognition, assels classification and provisioning for non-performing assets
as well as contingency provision for standard assets as prescribed by The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for
NBFCs 1o the extent applicable, collectively referred as "Previous GAAP”.

The Company's financi

These are the Company's first standalone or separate financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The Company has applicd Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards for transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind
AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flow of the

Company is provided in Note 4.
These standalone or separate financial slatements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors and
authorized for issuc on 30th May, 2022

2.2 |Presentation of financial statements
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equily and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and

presented in the format prescribed in the Division 11 to Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")
applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies ("NBFC"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared
and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". The disclosure requirements
with respect to items in the Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Profit and Loss,
as prescribed in the Schedule 111 to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the Financial

Statements along with the other notes required o be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and

regulations issued by the RBI.

2.3 |Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR' or ') which is also the Company's




INDEL MONLY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22
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2.5

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values.

Certain accounting policies of the Company and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an assel or paid (o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characleristics into account when pricing the asset or liabilily at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a

basis, except for share based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and me

value but are not fair value, such value in use in Ind AS 36.

The Company has established policies and procedures with

asurements that have some similarities to fair

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 based on the degree to which the

= Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly and

- Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.
Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS")
requires the Management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the
Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates
are reflected in the linancial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Following are areas that involved a higher degree of estimate and judgement or complexity in determining the
carrying amount of some assets and liabilities.

a) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method
The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an

element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life- cycle of the instruments, as well as expected
changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

b) Impairment of Financial Assels
The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments, requires judgement, in estimating

the amount and timing of future cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while determining the

impairment losses and assessing a significant increase in credit risk.
The Company's Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the oulput of a complex model with a number ol

underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.
. Development of ECL model, including the various formulac and the choice of inputs.
. Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weights, to derive the
cconomic inputs into the ECL model,

- Management overlay used in circumstances w
assumptions and model techniques do not capture all the ris

here management judges (hat the existing inpuls,
k factors relevant to the Company's lending

portfolios.
It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its model in the conte
adjust when necessary.

c) Employee Benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.

d) Impact of COVID-19
The COVID-19 outbreak and its cffect on the economy has impacted our customers and our performance,

«t of actual loss experience and

and the future effects of the outbreak remain uncertain.
The outbreak necessitated government to respond at unprecedented levels to protect public health, local

economies and livelihoods. There remains a risk of subsequent waves of infection, as evidenced by the

recently emerged variants of the virus.
Economic forecasts are subject to a high degree of uncertainty in the current environment. Limitations of
forecasts and economic models require a greater reliance on management judgement in addressing both the

error inherent in economic forecasts and in assessing associated ECL outcomes.
The calculation of ECL under Ind AS 109 involves significant judgements, assumptions and estimates. The
level of estimation uncertainty and judgement has increased during financial year as a result of the economic

effects of the COVID-19 outbreak.
As a result of government and bank support measures, significant credit deterioration has not yet occurred.

This delay increases uncertainty on the timing of the stress and the realisation of defaults. Management has
applied COVID-19 specific adjustments 10 modelled outputs to reflect the temporary nature of ongoing
government support, the uncertainty in relation to the timing of stress and the degree to which economic
consensus has yet captured the range of economic uncertainty. As a result, ECL is higher than would be the
case if it were based on the forecast economic scenarios alone.




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
INTS: 2021-22

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEME

The Company has developed various accounting estimates in these Financial Statements based on forecasts
assumptions as at March 31, 2022 about future events

nstances. There is a considerable degree of
s are also subject to uncertainties
itions are likely to be
d the effect of

of cconomic conditions which reflect expectations and
that the management believe are reasonable in the circur
judgement involved in preparing forecasts. The underlying assumption
e the control of the Company. Accordingly, actual economic cond
cipated events frequently do not occur as expected, an

ng estimates included in these financial statements.
associated uncertainties are
assessments

which are often outsid
different from those forecast since anti
those differences may significantly impact accounti

The significant accounting cstimates impacted by these forecasts and
predominantly related to expected credit losses, fair value measurement, and recoverable amount

of non-financial assels.

e) Accounting for leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qua
[dentification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses signifi

the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
as the non-cancellable period of a lea

lifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
cant judgement in assessing

The Company determines the lease term se, together with both periods

ase if the Company is reasonably certain lo exercis
if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise
to exercise an option 0 extend a lease, or not

e that option; and

covered by an option to extend the le
that

periods covered by an option to terminate the lease

option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain
it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an

to exercise an option to terminate a lease,
the lease, or not to exercise the option

cconomic incentive for the Company 1o exercise the option fo extend

10 terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period

of a lease.
The discount rate is generally based on the increment

for a portfolio of leases with similar characleristics.

fy  Fair value measurement
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are 1aken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect

al borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or

the reported fair value of financial instruments.

g) Business model objective of financial assets.
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the contractual cashflow

characteristics and the business model objective. The Company determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together (o achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assels is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these
are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assels
measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the
objective of the business for which the asset was held. Moenitoring is part of the Company's continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial asselts are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in busj el and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets. @ONE?

h)  Other estimates
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3.2

an loan portfolio), contingent liabilities, useful lives, depreciation method

These include provisions (other th
t and intangible assels etc.

and residual value of property, plant and equipmen
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue recognition

a) Interest income

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profit and loss using |
at amortized cost, debt instruments measure

he Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

for all financial instruments measured d at FVTOCI and debt

instruments designated at FVTPL.
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactl
through the expected life of the financial instrument. The ca
transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the contract. Transaction costs include i
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk,
the adjustment is recorded as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the
balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortized
through interest income in the Statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to
other than credit-impaired assels.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaire

rest rate to the net amortized cost of the financial asset. If th
interest income on a gross basis.
gnized when they become measurable and when it

y discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

lculation of the effective interest rate includes
ncremental costs

the gross carrying amount of financial assets

d, the Company calculates interest income by applying the

effective inte e financial assel cures and is no

longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating
Additional interest and interest on trade advances, are reco
is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.

b) Dividend income

Dividend is recognised as income whe
dividend can be measured reliably.

¢) Revenue from and rendering of services
Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that

reflects the considerations, 0 which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or

services to customer. excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a

AS 115.
Revenue from contract with customer for rendering
performance obligation is satisfied.

d) Net gain/ (loss) on change in fair value
The assets which are being measured at FVTPL are restated to their fair value as at the reporting date and any

n the right to receive the dividend is established and the amount of

five-step model as set out in Ind

services is recognised at a point in time when

gain/ (loss) on change in fair value will be recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments
a) Recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recog|

provisions of the instruments.
Financial assels and financial

attributable to the acquisition 0

and financial liabilities at FVT
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs di

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized i

nized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
r issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assels
PL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

Nt table to the
fatel n’,g atement of

\

profit and loss.




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

b) Financial assety
Classification and measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: amortised cost; fair
value through other comprehensive income; and fair value through profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of [nd AS 109 are required to be subsequently

measured at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the enlity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash Nlow characteristics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that meet the following criteria are measured at amortised cost (cxcept for debt instruments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding,.
For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition, The

principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal).
Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a

profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.
Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that
introduce exposure to risks or volalility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending
arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal form.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental 1o the classification of a
financial asset. The Company determines the business models at a level that reflects how financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Company’s business model does not depend
on management’s intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is
performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are subject to impairment.

Financial instruments measwred at fair value through other comprehensive income C"FYTOCr”)
Debt instruments that meet the following criteria are measured ai fair value through other comprehensive

income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in Statement of profit and loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. Other changes in
fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income. When the asset is

disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in reserve is transferred to Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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Kinancial instruments measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (“FVIPL")

II:Slt‘rVutI\-llc):lms that do not meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FYTPL. Financial assels
a L are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re

n‘tcasurcmcnl recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The gain or loss on disposal is recognised in the
P I . . “ .
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income is recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss for FVTPL

df:b.l mslr.umcnls. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive
dividend is established.

Investments in equity instriments al FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in
faqulty instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments. Dividends from

these investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company's right to receive
dividends is established.

Reclassifications
If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new calegory apply

prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that result
in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. ECL is calculated using a model which captures portfolio
performance over a period of time. ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is
the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive discounted at the original EIR.

ECL is measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

- 12-month ECL, i.e., ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months afier the reporting date (referred to as Stage 1); or

s Lifetime ECL, i.e., lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial
_linstrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.. The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or
on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement

of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the assel's expected cash flows using the asset's

original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.
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Key clements of ECL computation are outlined below:

Probability of default (“PD™) is an estimate of the likelihood that customer will default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously de-recognised and is still in the portfolio.

- Loss given default (*LGD™) estimates the normalised loss which Company incurs post customer default.
[t is usually expressed as a percentage of the Exposure at default ("EAD™). Effective interest rate (“EIR") is
the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of financial instrument. For
calculating EIR any upfront fees need to be excluded from the loans and advance amount.

The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different
products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into various pools. For certain pools
where historical information is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh slippage of past years. For
those pools where historical information is not available, the PD/ default rates as stated by external reporting
agencies is considered.

Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage

3 assets. Evidence of creditimpairment includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- abreach of contract such as a default or past duc event;

- the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- the disappearance of an active market for a securily because of financial difficulties; or

- the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in
the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk
of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of

impairment.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring
the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime
ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (“PD") which affects both the measurement of
ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk. '

Default considered for computation of ECL. computation is as per the applicable prudential regulatory norms.

Significant increase in credit risk
The Company monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Company's accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that
financial assets with *low” credit risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was
anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first
recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking i
available without undue cost or effort, based on the Company's expert credit assessment,
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Impairment Reserve

Where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP
(including standard asset provisioning), the Company will appropriate the difference from their net profit or
loss after tax 10 a separate ‘Impairment Reserve'. The balance in the ‘Impairment Reserve' shall not be
reckoned for regulatory capital.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial
asset are rencgotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A
modification affects the amount and/ or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future
date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may

affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g.: a change to the increase in the
interest rate that arises when covenants are breached)

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial dif ficulty to maximise collection and minimise the
risk of default. Loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts
to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and
the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include
an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and

interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and
amendments to covenants.

When a financial asset is modilied, the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition.
In accordance with the Company's policy, a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to
substantially different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original
contractual terms the Company considers the following;

Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change in currency
or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If these do not clearly indicate a substantjal modification, then a quantilative assessment is performed to
compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash flows under the original terms with the
contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognised, the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of
derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this
revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or
loss on derecognition.
The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare
occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. This applies only in the case
where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a sighificant discount to its revised par amount because
there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Company monitors
credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the
borrower is in past due status under the new terms.
When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the m

derecognition, the Company determines if the financial asset's credit risk h
initial reconition.

odification does not resultl in
as increased significantly since
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Other modification
For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects
the Company's ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company's previous
experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, including the borrower's
payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher
than what was expected at initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-
month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification
leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification gain/ loss
comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then
the Company measures ECL for the modified assel, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified
financial asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash lows expire
(including expiry arising from a modification wilh substantially different lerms), or when the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
hability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in
OC1 and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with the exception of cquity
investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gainfloss previously recognised in OCI
is not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Write off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the writeoff. A write-off" constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply
enforcement activities to financial assets wrillen off. Recoveries resulling from the Company’s enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains.

Financial Liabilities

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the writeoff. A write-off conslilules a derecognition event. The Company may apply
enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company's enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains.

Equity instrionents.

An equily instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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¢)  Financial liabilities

are determined based on the effective interest rate method,

financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

derecopnised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
d)  Financial Guarantee Contracts

the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument,

desienated as at FVTPL., are subsequently measured at the higher of:

Financial Instruments; and

accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
¢)  Derivative financial instruments

rate risks.
FVTPL.

Statement of profit and loss.

value is negative.
) Offsetting

a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the group or the counterparty.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effeclive interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not

the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 -

the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward contracts,
currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign exchange and interest

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at lhe date the contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is recognized in

Derivatives are carried as [inancial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when fair

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
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Cash and bank balances
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances

(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

value,
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and casl

deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any,
of the Company's cash management.

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposils, carmarked balances with banks
and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being
subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value. are not included as part of cash and cash

1 equivalents consist of cash and short- term
as they are considered an integral part

equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future cconomic bene
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses),
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purc
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and r
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use an
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sh

fits associated with the item will flow to the
less accumulated depreciation and

hase price, including import duties and
cbates, any directly attributable cost of
d estimated costs of dismantling and

cet date arc disclosed separately

under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its

intended use at the reporting date. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, ifany.
Subsequent expenditure related to the asset arc added to its carrying amount or recognised as a separale assel
only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and mainienance costs are expensed off as and
when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using written down value method (WDV) to
write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which
is in line with the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Computers (End user device) 3

Computers (Servers and networks) 6

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles (Other than Motorcycles, scooters and other 8

mopeds)

Vehicles (Motoreycles, scooters and other mopeds) (10

Office Equipment 5

Plant and Machinery 15
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounling eslimates.
An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are aftributable to
the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
stated at original cost net of tax, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.
Intangible assets i.e., Software are amortised on written down value basis over the estimated useful life of 3
years,
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising [rom derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement ol
Profitand Loss when the asset is derecognised.
Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company cstimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or
earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than ils carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced lo its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Leases

The Company determines that a contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration.

Company as a lessee

At the inception of a contract which is or contains a lease, the Company recognizes lease liability at the
present value of the future lease payments for non-cancellable period of a lease which is not short term in
nature except for lease of low value items. The future lease payments for such non-cancellable period are
discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

The Company elects to apply the practical expedient to not to separate non-lease component from lease
component, in case of a contract containing lease. The Company accounts such contracts as a single leasc

component.
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Lease payments include fixed payments, i.c., amounts expected lo be payable by the Company under
residual value guarantee, the exercise price of a purchase option i the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payment of penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term considered reflects
that the Company shall exercise termination option. The Company also recognizes a right of use asset which

comprises of amount of initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct cost incurred by the
Company and estimated dilapidation costs.

Right of use assets is amortized over the period of lease,
Payment made towards short term Leases (leases for which lease term is 12 months or lesser) and low value

assels are recognized in the statement of Profi
Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the
finance le

tand Loss as rental expenses over the tenor of such leases.

Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
ase. The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognized over the lease
term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periadic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the
lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use assel
arising trom the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to
which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

3.8 |Non-current asset held for sale
Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabililies are classificd as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocaled first to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and
liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventorics, financial assets, deferred tax
assets, employee benefit assets, and biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the
Company's other accounting policies. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains
and losses on re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss. Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no longer amortized or depreciated.

3.9 |Finance cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rale on respeclive
financial instruments measured at Amortized cost. Financial instruments include bank term loans, non-
convertible debentures, subordinated debts, interest expense on lease liabilities computed by applying the
Company's incremental borrowing rate and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Finance costs are charged to the
Statement of profit and loss.

3.10 | Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia/ befs \
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Long-term employee henefits

Detined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are the post-employment plans under which the Company pays a fixed
contribution to a fund and the Company's liability is limited to payment of such fixed contributions
Contributions 1o defined contribution plans are recognized as expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to such benefits.

The Company provides benefits such as, provident fund and pension schemes (both managed by other than
the Company) to its employees which are treated as defined contribution plans.

Delined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes 1o the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost, both vested and unvested, is
recognized as an expense al the earlier of (a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and (b) when
the entity recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The major defined benefit plans of the Company are as follows:

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, in
capacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the
tenure of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by acwarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each Balance Sheel date using the projected unit credit method. The Company's
gratuity scheme is unfunded. The Company recognizes the obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance
Sheet as a liability.

Gains and losses through remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The effects of any plan amendments are recognized in net profit in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Compensated absences

Compensaled absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an actuarially determined liability at the
present value of the delined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Any reimbursements with respect to liabilities/ provisions are recognized only when there is a virtual
certainty that the said amounts will be received.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered lo exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
comract. The provision in such cases will be recognized at lower of cost of fulfilling the contract and any

expected compensation for not fulfilling the contract.
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Foreign Currency Translations
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.
Transactions in foreign currencies, i.e., other than Indian rupees, are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing

on the date of transaction
Foreign currency denominated monetary assels and liabilities are re-measured into the functional currency at

the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are recognized in the statement
of Profit and Loss except to the extent, exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest

costs on foreign currency borrowings, are capitalized as part of borrowing costs.

Current and deferred tax

Income tax expense comprises current lax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss except when they relate to items that are recognized outside profit and loss
(whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case tax is also recognized outside
profit and loss, as appropriate. Current income taxes are determined based on respective taxable income
based on 1ax rate enacted as at reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences

between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business
loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,

unused tax losses, depreciation carryforwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assels and Liabilities are measured based on the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels against current tax liabilitics and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. It is
disclosed in the financial statements. If the outflow of such obligation becomes probable, it is recognized as
a provision.

A contingent assel is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Contingent assels are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization. It is

disclosed in the financial statements if it is probable only.
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4.1

Earnings per share

Basic camings per share are computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The Company did

not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years' presented.
Statement of Cashflows

Cash Nows are reported using the

indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
tr

ansactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipls or payments,

The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activitics of the Company are
segregated.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the internal reporling provided to the Chiel
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The management assesses the financial performance and position of
the Company and makes strategic decisions. The chief operating decision maker consists of the Directors of]
the Company.

The Company's primary business segments are reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e.,

financing. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main business. As such, there are no
separale reportable segments,

FIRST-TIME ~ ADOPTION  OF INDIAN
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been prepared in

accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes of transition to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance

prescribed in Ind AS 101, First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2020 as the
transition date from the previous GAAP.

The transition to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements, disclosures
in the notes thereto and accounting policies and principles. The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have
been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 and the comparative
information. An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company’s Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, is set out in Note #4.2 below.

Exemptions availed on first-time adoption to Ind
AS

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemplions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions:

a. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible

Assels

On transition to Ind AS, Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant
and equipment and intangible assets existing as at April |, 2020, measured as per previous GAAP and used

that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property plant and equipment.
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4.2

b. Leases
The Company elects to apply the criteria for identifying whether a lease is or contains a lease based on the
facts and circumstances existed as at April 1, 2019. The lease liability on transition date is arrived at by
computing the present value of remaining lease payments discounted using the Company's incremental
borrowing rate.

Right of use assel at transition date is measurcd at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating o the lease immediately prior the date of
transition to Ind AS.

¢. Business combinations
The Company elects to apply the requirements of Ind AS 103 from the date of transition, i.e., April 1, 2020
only.

Reconciliation between Previous GAAP and Ind

AS

(i) Equity reconciliation Tin lakhs
Particulars Note March 31,2021 [April 1,2020

As reported under previous GAAP 8,787.46 7,837.58
Application of EIR method on loan assets (a) (8.78) (5.82)
Application of EIR method on borrowings (b) 43.00 1747
Expected credit loss provision on loans (e) 68.93 64.24
Depreciation on ROU assets (c) (424.43)

Finance cost on lease liabilities (c) (235.32)

Rent expenses (©) 163.83

Unwinding of discount on security deposits (c) 20.80 -
Employee benefits (d) (31.98) 92.17)
Deferred tax adjustments H 77.87 1.79
Other adjustments 0.02 (0.01)
Equity under Ind AS 8,761.40 7,883.08

(ii) Total comprehensive income reconciliation

For the year
ended March 31,

Particulars Note 2021
Net profit under previous GAAP 949.88
Application of EIR method on loan assels (a) (2.96)

Unwinding of discount (c) 20.80
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Application of EIR method on borrowings (b) (34.47)
Interest expenses on lease liability (c) (235.32)
Depreciation on ROU assets (c) (424.43)
Expected loss provision on financial assets (e) 4.69
Employee benefits (d) 60.19
Rent expenses (c) 463.83
Deferred tax adjustments (H 76.08
Other adjustments 0.03
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS §78.32

(iii) Reconciliation of Statement of cashflows

There are no material adjustments to the Statement of Cashflows as reported under the Previous GAAP.

Notes to reconciliation between previous GAAP
and Ind AS

(a) Application of effective interest rate method

on loans and advances given

As per the EIR method, the processing charges income cannot be recognised upon sanction of loan, but it
should be spread over the life of the loan by using the effective interest rate.

As part of transition, the Company had reversed income of 25.82 lakhs to retained earnings and recognised a
further income of 22.96 lakhs during 2020-21 as compared to previous GAAP figures,

(b) Application of effective interest rate method

on borrowings

Due to application of this method, EIR was required to be computed on each borrowing. As part of
transitional adjustment, processing charges expensed off amounting to 377.47 lakhs has been reversed and is
being expensed off over the remaining term of loan using EIR method.

During 2020-21, an additional interest expense of 234.47 lakhs were recognised as per EIR method.

(c) Leases

As a transition adjustment, the Company had recognized right of use asset of ¥2491.45 lakhs and there was
an addition of 21003.11 lakhs during the year 2020-21. The Company had also recognized lease liability to
the extent of ¥2346.55 lakhs. Further lease liability has also created for 3943.12 lakhs for the additions made
during the said period.
The rent deposits of the Company has been discounted to its present value and difference of 144.9 lakhs on
transition and 259.98 lakhs during 2020-21 had been taken while computing cost of ROU asset.

%
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During the year 2020-21, depreciation of 2424.44 lakhs has been provided on ROU assets. The interest on
lease liability was 2269.78 lakhs. As at year-end, the security deposit has been restated to its present value as
at year-end. The unwinding of discount accounted for in 2020-21 in this regard was 220.8 lakhs.
The rent expenses incurred has been considered as the repayment of lease liability for the year.

(d) Employee Benefits

The Company had taken revised actuarial valuation reports for gratuity and leave encashment on transition
date and recognised an additional liability of 292.17 lakhs. During the year 2020-21, the Company had also
provided for an additional employee benefit expenses of ¥60.19 (net of actuarial gain).

(¢) Expected credit loss on financial assets

The Company was creating provision on loans as per the income recognition and asset classification norms
prescribed by RBL On transition to Ind AS, Ind AS 109 gives specific guidance on accounting for
impairment of financial assets. Consequently, RBI had directed that if the ECL provision requirements of]
Ind AS 109 to be recognised in the financial statements and any provision required in excess of ECL should
be recognised by creating impairment reserve out of the profit or loss for the period.

Based on this, as part of transition, the Company had reversed provision created of 264.24 lakhs and a
further reversal of 24.69 had been made during the year 2020-21.

(N Deferred tax adjustments

Due 1o the transitional adjustments made, the Company had created the deferred tax assct amounting to
21.79 lakhs as at April 1, 2020. Further, due to the difference between the Previous GAAP and Ind AS, an
additional benefit of 274.89 lakhs made in Profit or loss for the period ending on March 31, 2021. Deferred
tax expense of 21.19 lakhs had made in other comprehensive income also.
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- As al
Sl March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 | April 1, 2020
in lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents
{a) Cash on hand 296.24 223.88 15.31
(b) Balances with banks 7,583.91 495.70 613.27
7,880.15 719.58 628.58
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(a)Term deposits with Banks 1,006.12 649.24 -
theld as cash collateral for securitisation trunsactions 1,006.12 649.24 <
and lien marked for overdraft balances)
Receivables
(i) Trade receivables - - -
(ii) Other receivables
(a) Considered good - secured 5197.79 3,852.37 1,618.27
(b) Considered good - unsecured 335.01 187.31 35.93
5,532.80 4,039.68 1,654.20
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - g '
5,532.80 4,039.68 1,654.20
Loans
(A)
(i) Gold loan 42,275.76 30,988.37 29,582.92
(ii) Business loan 6,874.13 7,290.22 3,079.04
(iii) Personal loan 3,357.55 1,082.91 44.75
(iv) Loans to related parties - 514.00 916.52
52,507.44 39,875.50 33,623.23
Less: Impairment allowance (140.15) (68.73) (51.88)
52,367.29 39,806.77 33,571.35
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S -

As at
_—
caritatus March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
2 in lakhs
(B)
1) Secured by Tangible assets
(1) Gold loan 42,275.76 30,988.37 29,582.92
(i1) Business loan 3,133.50 5,705.95 2,424.66
(iii) Personal loan . - »
(iv) Loans to related parties 5 514.00 916.52
45409.26 37,208.32 32,924.10
Less: Impairment allowance
45,409.26 37,208.32 32,924.10
1) Unsecured
(i) Gold loan - -
(ii) Business loan 3,740.63 1,584.27 654.39
(iii) Personal loan 3,357.55 1,082.91 44.75
(iv) Loans to related parties - -
7,098.18 2,667.18 699.14
Less: Impairment allowance
7,098.18 2,667.18 699.14
(©)
(I) Loans in India
i) Public sector - -
i) Others 52,507.44 39,875.50 33,623.23
52,507.44 39,875.50 33,623.23
(1) Loans outside India - - -
52,507.44 39,875.50 33,623.23
Less: Impairment allowance (140.15) (68.73) (51.88)
52,367.29 39,806.77 33,571.35
Note: All of the above loans are carried
using amortised cost model considering the
business mode] objective.
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As al
Particulars R PR (P
B 7 March 31,2022 [ March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
o = - Zin lakhs
9 [Investments
a) Investment in equity instruments
(1) Investment in subsidiary (carriced at cost)
Unguoted
Indel Money Fin-Tech Private Limted 12.00 12.00 12.00
No. of shares 1.20 lakhs (previous year - 1.20 lakhs)
12,00 12.00 12.00
10 |Other financial assets
a) Security deposits $20.28 389.88 276.73
b) Other financial assets 100.89 32.52 176.07
‘ 921.17 422.40 452.80
Il |Current tax assets (Net)
2) TDS receivable $93.20 233.70 204.30
893.20 233,70 204.30
12 |Deferred tax assets (Net)
a) Deferred tax assets 1,095.45 1,018.74 831.19
b) Deferred tax liabilities (859.12) (831.18) (723.56)
236.33 187.56 107.63
(A) The balance of deferred tax assets comprises temporary differences attributable to:
- (€ in lakhs)
Charged/ Recognised in
ehiliiais As at April 1, (credited) to Other As at March 31,
2021 profit or loss for | Comprehensive 2022
the period Income
Difference between book base and lax
based in respect of PPE, ROU assets and (701.71) 12.03 - (689.68)
intangible assets
Application of EIR on linancial assets 56.52 (6.50) . 50.02
Application of EIR on financial liabilities (10.83) (24.45) - (35.28)
Deferred tax on lease liabilities 826.57 49.34 . 875.91
Employee Benelits 17.01 9.94 8.41 35.36
Others
Deferred tax assets (net) 187.56 40.36 | 8.41 236.33
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- T | As at -
Particulars .
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1,2020
: Zin lakhs
Charged/ Recognised in
Particulars Asat April 1, (credited) to Other ‘ As at March 31,
2020 profit or loss for | Comprehensive 2021
the period Income
Difference between book base and tax
based in respect of PPE, ROU assets and (601.60) (100.11) - (701.71)
intangible assets
Application of EIR on financial assets 39.22 17.30 - 56.52
Application of EIR on financial liabilities (19.50) 8.67 - (10.83)
Deferred tax on leasc liabilities 666.31 160.26 - 826.57
Employce Benefits 23.20 (5.00) (1.19) 17.01
Others < - - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 107.63 81.12 (1.19) 187.56
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
(< in lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
(a) Current tax 285.60 360.73
(b) Deferred tax 0.72 (81.13)
Total tax expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss 286.32 279.60
Tax effect on other comprehensive income 841 1.19
Deferred tax credit recorded in equity -
Tax losses on which deferred tax is not recognised - -

the Statement of profit and loss:

Reconciliation of estimated Income fax cxpense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in

(2 in lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Profit before tax 497.55 1,154.36
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expenses 125.23 290.55
Adjustment on account of:
a) Expenses not allowable as per income tax - 0.58
b) Effect of income exempt from tax - :
¢) Non-creation deferred tax on temporary differences - -
d) Tax related to prior years - -
¢) Deferred tax recognised in OCI 8.41 (1.19)
b) Others 152.68 (10.34)
Tax expense recognised during the year 286.32 279.60
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[ I As al
Parti
articulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 April 1,2020
B ' | Zin lakhs
16 |Other non-financial assets
a) Prepaid expenses 56.11 28.95 27.66
b) Advance for expenscs 373.24 254.18 228.8]
¢) Deposits with government authoritics 197.56 125.82 39.00
d) Investments in non-financial assets 0.95 0.95 0.95
¢) Others s . -
627.86 409.90 296.42
17 |Payables
(i) Trade payables
(ii) Other payables
(a) Sundry creditors 34.07 3842 1627
34.07 38.42 16.27

17.1 | Trade Payables Aging Schedule as at 31st March 2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars More than 3

Less than | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Total
Years

(i) MSME = z . .
(ii) Others 34.07 - - . 34.07
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME 5 " s .
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - z - - =

Total 34.07 = 2 . 34.07

Trade Payables Aging Schedule as at 31st March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Tore T
Less than | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years » n.:,:::_':n 5 Total
(i) MSME - . - “ 5
(ii) Others 38.42 - - < 38.42

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - . :
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - . - “ 5

Total 38.42 - 5 - 38.42
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R - As at
Particulars
March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 | April 1,2020
B 2 in lakhs
Debt Securities
At amortised cost
Non-convertible Debentures (Secured)
- In India (Refer note (ii) below) 11,890.10 5,166.51 3,782.45
- Qutside India - -
Non-convertible Debentures (Unsecured)
- In India (Refer note (ii) below) 4,059.30
- Outside India
15,949.40 5,1606.51 3,782.45

Note:

Details of non-convertible debentures (secured)

(i) There are no debt sccuritics measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or designated as FVTPL.
(ii) The bonds are secured by paripassu floating charge on current assets, book debts and loans and advances.

(2 in lakhs)

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31, 2021

Interest rate

From Balance Sheet date

Interest rate range Amount e Amount
A) Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on maturity:
Maturing within | year 10.25- 11.25% 64.00 | 9.75-13.43% 953.64
Maturing between | year to 3 years 10.00 - 16.00% 1,243.86 | 10.00 - 13.43% 1,025.55
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years 9.75 - 14.78% 5,392.91 | 10.00 - 13.00% 3,187.32
Maturing beyond 5 years 11.50-12.25% 332.00 - -
‘Total amortised cost 7,032.77 5,106.51

From Balance Sheet date

As at April 1, 2020

A) Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on maturity:

Maturing within | year

Maturing between | year to 3 years
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years
Maturing beyond 5 years

Total amortised cost

Interest rate range Amount
10.50- 11.75% 380.75
9.50 - 13.43% 481.60
9.50 - 13.43% 2,920.10

3,782.45




INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

Note:

As at
o
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 | April 1,2020
] 2 in lakhs
19 |Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
At amortised cost
i) Secured
Term loans
- From Banks (Refer note (i) below) 18,230.75 13,775.47 14,770.05
Loans repayable on demand
- From Banks (Refer note (iii) below) 3,587.83 2,612.01
ii) Unsecured
- Unsecured loan from financial institutions = 100.00
- Lease liabilities 347998 3,105.40 2,46.55
25,298.56 19,492.88 17,216.60

(i) There is no borrowings measured at FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

(ii) The term loans loan from bank are secured against Book Debt, Personal Guarantee of Directors and

Corporate Guarantee of Holding Company.

(iii) The working capital facility of 33,587.83 lakhs (March 31, 2021 - 22612.01 lakhs;
lakhs are secured primarily by floating and 1st paripasu charge on
(excluding the specific charge of existing NCD holders). Further,

April 1, 2020 22,378.24
entire receivables with a margin of 25%
itis collaterally secured by equitable

mortgage of loan with commercial building and land owned by holding company;,

sister concems and
Directors and personal guarantee by holding company,

sister concerns and Directors.
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-_—
—

As at
Particulars
- March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 | April 1,2020
2 in lakhs
Details of loans Jrom Banks (Secured) (¢ in lakhs)
. il As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
o P Sheet date Interest rate range Amount Interest rate Amount
_— 0] range
A) Repayable on demand
Working capital facilities 9.45-12.80% 3587.83 | 9.45-12.80% 2,612.01
B) Repayable in instalments
Maturing within | year 9.45-15.00% 6,956.86 | 9.45-15.00% 7,563.23
Maturing between | year to 3 years 9.45-15.00% 796991 | 9.45-15.00% 2,114.83
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years 14.50% 3,600.00 | 12.45-15.00% 1,419.10
Maturing beyond 5 years 5 14.50% 3,000.00
Total amortised cost 18,526.77 14,097.16
As at April 1, 2020
From Balance Sheet date
Interest rate range Amount
A) Repayable on demand
Working capital facilities 12.45-12.80% 2478.24
B) Repayable in instalments
Maturing within | year 12.25-15.00% 6,430.18
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 12.25-15.00% 3,137.35
Maturing between 3 year to 5 years - ¥
Maturing beyond 35 years 14.50% 3,000.00
Total amortised cost 12,567.54
20 |Subordinated Liabilities
At amortised cost
i) Unsecured
- Subordinate Bonds -Private Placement 19,020.70 14,758.05 9,963.70
19,020.70 14,758.05 9,963.70
Details of Subordinate Bonds (Unsecured) (R in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
From Balance Sheet date Interest rate
Interest rate range Amount nge Amount
A) Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on maturity;
Maturing within | year 11.00-14.87% 2,748.75 | 11.00-14.87% 1,551.80
Maturing between | year to 3 years 11.00-14.87% 477420 | 11.00-14.87% 7,453.95
Malturing between 3 year to S years 11.00-14.87% 10,354.15 | 11.00-14.87% 5,752.30
Maturing beyond S years 11.00-14.87% 1,143.60 - .
Total amortised cost 19,020.70 14,758.05
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- e . |
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 April 1,2020
. ] 2 in lakhs
As at April 1, 2020
From Balance Sheet date '
Interest rate range Amount
A) Issued on priv;re placement basis
Repayable on maturity:
Maturing within | year .
Maturing between | year to 3 years 11.00-14.87.00% 4,249.20
Maturing between 3 year to § years 11.00-14.87.00% 4,756.55
Maturing beyond § years 11.00-14.87.00% 957.95
Total amortised cost 9,963.70
Other financial liabilities
a) Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings 2,665.39 1,743.01 951.47
b) Refundable security deposits from staff 86.68 67.86 54.96
c) Other payables 378.89 91.40 135.12
3,130.96 1,902.27 1,141.55
Provisions
a) Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 115.79 55.25 45.83
- Leave encashment 24.68 12.31 46.34
140.47 67.56 92.17
Other non-financial liabilities
a) Statutory dues payable 57.57 36.45 35.60
57.57 36.45 35.60
Equity share capital
Authorised.
1250.00 lakhs cquity shares of 210 each 12,500.00 8,500.00 8,500.00
(March 31, 2021 - 850.00 lakhs; April 1, 2020 - 850.00 lakhs) 12,500.00 8,500.00 8,500.00
Issued, subscribed,_called-up and paid-up
931.47 lakhs equity shares of 210 cach 9,314.70 8,214.70 8,214.70
(March 31,2021 - 821.47 lakhs; April 1, 2020 - 821.47 lakhs) 9,314.70 8,214.70 8,214.70
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Particulars

As at

March 31, 2022

March 31,2021

April 1,2020

T in lakhs

a) Reconciliation of number of shares

As at March 31, 2022

As al March 31, 2021

E iy -
quity shares No. of shares (in

No. of shares

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
(c) Shares held by the holding company

: — Iakhs) Tin lakhs (nlakhs) | ° ' Iakbs
Balance at the beginning of the year 821.47 8,214.70 821.47 8,214.70
Add: Issue during the year 110.00 1,100.00 -

Less: Buyback during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 931.47 9,314.70 821.47 8,214.70
' As at April 1, 2020
Equity shares No. of shares (in —
lakhs) nTkas
Balance at the beginning of the year 821.47 8,214.70
Add: Issue during the year
Less: Buyback during the year
Balance at the end of the year 821.47 8,214.70

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 210 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directars is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation,
the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

- Percentage of holding

Particulars March 31,2022| March 31,2021| April 1, 2020

Indel Corporation Private Limited

- Number of shares (in lakhs) 931.47 821.47 821.47
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

(d) Details of shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

- Percentage of holding

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021| April 1,2020

Indel Corporation Private Limited

- Number of shares (in lakhs) 931.47 821.47 821.47

- Percentage of holding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

(e) Shares held by the Promoters

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 April 1,2020

Indel Corporation Private Limited

- Number of shares (in lakhs) 931.47 821.47 821.47
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Particulars

Other equity

a) Reserve fund

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions to / (transfers made) during the year
Balance at the end of the year

b) Impairment reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Transition adjustments

Additions to / (transfers made) during the year
Balance at the end of the year

¢} Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Transition adjustments

Net profit/ (loss) for the year

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan
Additions to / (transfers made) during the year
Balance at the end of the year

d) Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year

Transition adjustments

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan
Balance at the end of the year

Total (a) + (b) + (c)

.'.\S at
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 | April 1,2020
Zinlakhs
15.06 15.06 15.06
15.06 15.06 15.06
68.95 64.24
- 64.24
120.81 4.71 .
189.76 68.95 64.24
462.69 (410.92) (392.18)
0.00 - (18.74)
211.23 874.76
(24.99) 3.56
(120.81) 4.71) -
528.12 462.69 (410.92)
3.56 -
(24.99) 3.56 -
(21.43) 3.56 .
732.94 546.70 (331.62)

Description of the nature and purpose of Other Equity
fa) Reserve Fund

f’),! Jmpm‘rmem reserve

percentage of net profit every year before any dividend is declared.

capital and no withdrawal is permitied withou any prior approval from RBI

Reserve fund represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 through transter of specified

The reserve fund can be utilized only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from time to time and every such
utilization shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the date of such utilization.

The impairment reserve is created when the impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the 'provisioning
required under income recognition and asset classification norms. The difterence between these will be appropriated

to the impairment reserve from the net profit o loss afler tax. This will not reckoned for the purpose of regulatory
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As al

March 31, 2022

Particulars

March 31,2021

April 1,2020

2 in lakhs

(c) Retained earnings

Retained eamings or accumulated surplus represents total of all profits retained since Company's inception.
Retained camings arc credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend payouts, transfers to General

reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserves.
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For the year ended

Particulars
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Tin lakhs
26 |Interest income
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
a) Interest on loans and advances 12,174.44 9,396.98
b) Interest income from investments -
¢) Interest income from term deposits from banks 56.719 21.57
d) Other interest income 8.35
12,231.23 9,432.90
Note: There are no assets measured at FVTOCH FVTPL
27 |Fees and commission income
a) Service charges and other fees on loan transactions 34.08 17.27
b) Collection fee related to transferred assets under
securitisation transactions 5.00 5.25
39.08 22.52
28 |Other income
a) Other income 30.13 11.00
30.13 11.00
29 |Finance costs
On financial liabilities measured al amortised cost
a) Interest on borrowings 2,692.35 2,329.70
b) Interest on debts securities 1,398.10 515.36
c) Interest on subordinated liabilities 2313.69 1,601.97
d) Interest on lease liabilities 301.07 269.78
e) Other borrowing costs - -
6,705.21 4,716.81
30 |Impairment of financial instruments
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
a) Baddebts written off 54.90 28.63
b) Loans 71.42 16.85
126.32 45.48
31 [Employee benefit expenses
a) Salaries and wages 2,173.03 1,473.27
b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds 125.90 87.48
c) Staff welfare expenses 4717.19 234.03
2,776.12 1,794.78
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Particulars

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

b) Amortisation on intangible assels

¢) Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Other expenses
Advertisement

Audit fees

Annual maintenance charges
Business promotion expenses
Insurance charges

Legal and professional charges
Membership and subscriptions
Miscellaneous expenses
Postage and courier
Transportation expenses
Office maintenance expenses
Electricity charges

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Directors' sitting fee

Directors remuneration
Repairs and maintenance
Communication expenses

Travelling and conveyance
Rent

Vehicle expenses
Prior period expense
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Earnings per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year (2 in lakhs)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in lakhs)
Basic and diluted earnings per share (2)

Face value per equity share ()

For the year ended
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
2in lakhs

269.10 218.87
24,19 17.06
510.65 424.44
803.94 660.37
212.17 142.82
5.84 3.69
26.67 25.63
138.19 182.92
45.01 41.78
211.55 165.75
20.00 8.96
7.02 35.20
29.71 10.09
0.05 2.14
46.98 47.26
55.31 42.90
66.56 32.87
76.52 46.60
16.50 14.00
24.00 24.00
6941 74.16
72.59 57.99
195.75 112.06

57.85 -
3.90 11.54

8.70 -
1.02 12.26
1,391.30 1,094.62
211.23 874.76
82147 821.47
0.26 1.06
10.00 10.00
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Payment to Auditors T in lakhs
' " Fortheyearended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

For Stawtory Audit (inclusive of taxes) 100 29
For Tax Audit 0.50 050
GST - 081 062
Total ) N | sn 4.06

Contingent liablities and contingent Assets

Asal
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debt
b) Guarantees- Counter guarantees provided to Banks . i ’
¢) Other money for which the company 1s contingently liable - =
Total : .

Operating segments

Primary segment

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information s available that is revaluated regularly by the
chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance The Company has only one reportable business
segment “Financial services”

Secondary segment (by geography)

The Company's economic environment is similar and it is having operations in India only. Therefore, the Company has only onc reportable
geographical segment. There are no aperations outside India and hence there is no external revenue or assets which require disclosure

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted 1o 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue in year ended March 31, 2022
(previous year - nil)

Employce Beneflits

In accordance with Ind AS - 19 Employee Benefits, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following disclosures are made

The Company recognised 2125 9 lakhs (2020-21: 287 48 lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss The
contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has an unfunded gratuity plan for qualifying employces. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The
benefit vests upon completion of five years of conlinuous service and once vested, it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of
employment In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesling

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the financial statements through other comprehensive income

Through 1ts defined benefit plans the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below

Interest risk:
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with eferences to government bond yields. Any decrease in mierest rate will increase the
plan hability

Longevity risk

I'he present value of defined benefit plan hability s caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment An increase in the life expectancy ol the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan padticipants. As such, an increase |
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability

The following table set out the unfunded status of the delined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in linancial statements.




N INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

noun n n the Profit or loss for the perlod
_ B (2 in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
- March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cosl 30 02 16.09
Past service cost - 2
Netinterest on net defined benefit liability 32 251
Amount recognised in Profit or loss for the year 13,28 18.66
unt ised in other comprehensive
(¢ in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Remeasnurement (pains)/ losses

a) Actuarial (gains)osses arising from changes in

- Change i demographic assumptions | 36
- Chonge in financial assumptions 1357 (1.07)
- Experience adjustment 19.83 (5.04)
b) Return on plan assel excluding considered in net
Amount recognised in other comprehensive 340 (4.75)
{e) Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation

(¥ in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 55 25 45 84
Current service cost 3002 16.09
Past service cost s
Interest cost 323 257
Actuarial (gans)osses 3340 (4.75)
Benelits paid 611) (4 50)
Closing defined benefit obligation 115.79 55.25
d) Net defined benefit liability/ (as:
(< an lakhs)
Particulars Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Present value of defined benelit obligation 115.79 5525 4584
Fair value of plan assets v - .
Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 11579 55.25 45.84
- Current 825 6.86 589
- Non-current 107.54 4839 3995
(e ) The Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity liability is as follows,
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 5.85% 5.85%
Salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rates (bused on age)
- Upto 30 years 38 00%: 38.00%
-31-44 years 1500% 15.00%
- Above 44 years 100% 7.00%)
Mortality Rate T1ALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
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Sensitivity analysis

(Gratuity 1 3 lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive 10 small changes in demographic assumptions. The key
actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive 1o are discount rate, future salary escalation rate and attrition
fate The following tables summarizes the "mpact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an
nerease ot decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points. These sensitivities have heen calculated to show the mavement in defined berefit

obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the
previous penods in the methods and assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis

— (2 in lakhs,
xulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
\Discount rate
- 100 bps increase 105 82 (3093)
- 100 bps decrease 127 44 60 26
Salary growth rate -
- 100 bps increase 126 58 6010
L= 100 bps decrease 106 13 (50 98)

The sensitivity analysis presented above ma

o ¥ 0ot be representative of the actual change inthe defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the
chan,

BE in assumpnions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumption may be comelated
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 13 cstimated as 14 54 years (previous year - 15.05 years)

The payout pattern of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted) estimated as at year-end is given below:

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Lxpected cashflow due

- within | year 325 686
- 2105 years 4408 2118
-610 10 years 4139 2099
- More than 10 years 141.14 5177

Capital management

The Reserve Bank of India vide 1s circular relerence RBU2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC)CC PD No.109722.10 106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020
outhned the regulatory guidance in relation to Ind AS financial statements from financial year 2019-20 onwards. This included gusdance for
computation of “owned funds’ , ‘net owned funds’ and ‘regulatory capital’ Accordingly, effective from the current financial year, the “regulatory

capital” has been computed in accordance with these tequirements read with the requirements of the Master Direction DNBR. PD 008/03.10 11912016
17 dated September 01, 2016 (as amended)

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively deternmine, raise and deploy capital 50 as to create value for its sharcholders The same is
done through a mix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short term flong term debt as may be appropnate.

The company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and stralegic investment plans. The capital
structure is monitored on the basis of net debt 1o equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Keserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelines, the
Company is required to mamntain a capital adequacy ratio conssting of Tier I and Tier 1 Capital The towl of Tier 11 Capital at any point of time. shall
not exceed 100 percent of Tier | Capital. The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Trer
land Tier Il capital, shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate nisk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of nsk adjusted value of ofT-balance
sheet

The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI

Regulatory capital and analytical ratios Tin lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tier | capital 10,047.64 8,761 40
Tier Il capital (limited to Tier | capital) 5,023 82 4,330 70
Total regulatory capital 15,071 46 13,142 10
Aggrepate of Risk weighted assets o 6345401 18295 64

Tier | capital ratio 1583% 18 14%
Teer 1l capital ratio 792% 5.07%
Capual to risk-weighted assets ratio 2315% 2721%
Liguidity coverape ratio
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. . i nds

Tier 1 Capital™ means owned fund as reduced by investment in shares of other non-banking financial companies and in shnrgs. dcbtehmurer:n.eboonli,.
outstanding loans and advances including hire purchase and lease finance made to and deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group
exceeding. i aggrepate, ten per cent of the owned fund

—_— ; ‘ ; : / mium
Owned fund™ means paid up equity capital, preference shares which are compulsorily convertible inlo equity, fiee reserves, balance i "h“";"' o
account and capial reserves representing surplus anising out of sale proceeds of asset, excluding reserves created by revaluation of asset, as reduced by
accumulated loss balance, book value of intangible assets and deferred revenue expenditure, 1l any

Tier I capital” includes the tollowing -

(a) preference shares other than those which are compulsorily convertible into equity

(b) revaluation reserves at discounted rate of lifly five percent w :

(€) General provisions (including that for Standard Assets) and loss reserves to the extent these are not attributable to actual diminution in value or
wentifiable potential loss in any specific asset and are available to meet unexpected losses, 1o the extent of one and one fourth percent of risk weighted
assets 12 month expected eredit loss (ECI) allowances for financial instruments i e where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition. shall be included under general provisions and loss reserves in Tier 11 capital within the limits specified by extant regulations. Lifetime
ECL <hall not be reckoned for repulatory capital (numerator) while 1t shall be reduced from the risk weighted assets

(d) hybrid debit capital instruments, and

(e) subordinated debi to the extend apgrepate does not exceed Tier | caputal

Aggregate Risk Weighted Asscts - i
Under RBI Guidelines, degrees of credit risk expressed as percentage weightages have been assigned 10 each of the on-balance sheet assels and ofl-

balance sheat assets. Henee., the value of each of the on-balance sheet assets and off: balance sheet assets requires o be multiplied by the relevant risk

weights o armive at nisk adjusted value of assets. The aggregate shall be taken into account for reckoning the minimum capital ratio

Leases

1) Company as a Lessee

As a lessee, the Company's lease asset class primaily consist of buildings or part thereof taken on lease for office premises used for operating
achivilies

For ransition, the Company has elected not 1o apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of
transition by class of asset and lcases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company has also used the practical
expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under AS 19 and therefore, has not
reassessed whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial application. relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying
Ind AS 37 immeduately before the date of initial application as an altemative 1 perforning an impairment review, excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the night-of-use asset at the date of initial application and used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options 1o
extend or terminate the lease. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portiolio of leases with similar characteristics

The weighted average incremental borrowng rate of 9.45% has been applied 1o lease liabilities recognized in the balance sheet at the date of imitial
application

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of’ expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use asset,
and finance cost for interest accrued on lease hability

The Company has followed modified rewospective approach for transition to Ind AS 116 wherein the Company had computed the Right of use asset at
transition date at an amount equal to the lease hability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
immediately prior the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly, as a transition adjustment, the Company had recognized right of use asset of 22491 45
lakhs (afler prepayment adjustment) and lease ability of 82346 S5 lakhs

Expense relating to leases on which short-term lease exemption was avaled is 2 57 85(previous year INil) The expense relating to leases of low-
value assets during the year ended March 31, 2021, 1s Nil (previous year Nil)

None of the lease contains any variable lease payments ar taken under sale and leaseback arrangements.
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Movement in lease Habilities
Tin lakhs
| MarhJl, 202 | March 31,201 |
T 3,10530 e
Add Additions during the year g mu
L.\¢‘I..1 I inance cost — __fﬂ)i———_ii&
s - (598.00) 419 59)

Less Repayment made during the period

|Less Termination/ modification adjustments SRS—

[
o T jam9R| 10540

[Closing batence I ———
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities 4
(undiscounted yalues) Tin lakhs
- Particulary March31, 2002 | March 31,2021 |
Upto | year - 67875 57146
2,616.02 2,334.75

| year - § years

1,621 84 148903 |

More than § years

1,936.61 14,3954

Total ) ~ 1

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Pursuant 1o Regulation 16 of the SEBI Debt Regulations and Section 71(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 states that where dcbeni_ures are issued by any
company, the company shall create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits of the company available for payment of dividend Rule 18(7) of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended by Companics (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, 2019,
listed NBEC is not required to create a DRR in case of public issue of debentures The rules funther mandate that the company which is coming with a
Public Issue shall deposit or invest, as the case may be, before the 30th day of April of each year a sum which shall not be less than 15% of the amount
of its debentures maturing during the year ending on the 315t day of March of the next year in any one of more prescribed methods

Accordingly. your Company is not required 1o create a DRR for the Public NCDs. The Company maintained liquid assets amounting to Rs. 87 i
lakhs n the form of Deposits with Scheduled Banks, which represents 15% of amount of its public issue of debentures maturing during the financial

year 2022-23

Fraud
During the FY 2021-22 there were instances of fraud on the Company by employees where gold

amounting 1o Ks 94 65 lacs ((Previous Year Rs NIL) of which the Company has recovered

loan related misappropriations have occurred
Rs | 98 lacs durning the year Wsell)

Pending Litigations

The Company's pending litigations compnise of claims by the Company
pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are
applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these procee
statements of the Company as at March 31, 2022 (previous year - nil)

on the customers 1o recover its dues The Company has reviewed all its
required and disclosed the contingent labilities where
dings to have a material adverse effect on its financial

Financial risk management framework
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely cr
Company’s primary focus 15 to achieve better predictability of financial markets and seek to minianize potentia

performance

odit risk, interest risk, currency risk & liquidity risk The
| adverse efTects on its financial

The financial risks are managed in accordance with the Company's risk management policy which has been approved by its Board of Directors.

Board of Directors of the Company have established Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO), which 15 responsible for developing and

monitoring risk management policies for its business. The credit risk is managed through credit norms established based on historical experience

Market risk
Market the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates,

foreign exchange rates, eic The objective of market nisk management is lo manage and control market risk expasures within acceplable parameters,
while maximizing the return

uj Prictng risk
The Company docs not have any asset which is exposed to the pricing risk

b) Currency risk
The Company does not have any assel which is exposed to the currency risk since the Company does not deal in foreign currency

¢ Interest rate risk
The company uses a mix of cash and borrowings to manage the liquidity & fund requirements of its day-to-day operations. Further, cenain inl?

beanng liabihities carry vaniable interest rates
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Credit Risk Management
Credi " oL 5 " :
edit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers fuil to discharge their contractual abligations The Company has a

comprehensive framework for monitoring eredit quality of its relail and other loans primatily based on Days past due monitoring at period end

Repayment by individual customers and portfolio is wacked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and legal recourse

Credit Quality of Financial Loans and Investments

1hF lollomngril!hlc sels out information about credit quality of loans and investments measured at amortized cost primarily based on days past due
information The amount represents gross carmying amount

— 2 in lakhs
. Particulars March J1, 2022 March 31, 2021

Gross carrying amount of loans 52,367 29 39,806 77

No dues : s .

30 days past due 32161 183 57

31-90 days past due 1,586.48 35308

Impaired (more than 90 days past due) 846 47 20479

The Company reviews the credit quality of its loans hased on the ageing of the loan at the period end: Since the company is into retail lending

b.usmcs.x. there is no significant credit nisk of any individual customer that may impact company adversely, and hence the Company has calculated its
ECL. allowances on a collective basis

Inputs considered in the ECL model

In assessing the impairment of financial loans under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the assets have been segmented into three stages The three

stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument The differences in accounting between stages, relate to the
recognition of expected credit losses and the measurement of interest income

I'he Company categerizes loan assets into stages primarily based on the Days Past Due status.
Stage 1 : 0-30 days past due

Stage 2 - 31-90 days past due
Stage 3 - More than 90 days past due

RBI COVID-19 Regulatory Package

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) notification no RBI/2019-20/186 DOR No BP. BC 47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 27th March,
2020, RBU2019-20/220 DOR. No.BP.BC 63/21.04 048/2020-21 dated April 17, 2020 and Press Release: 2019-2020/2392 dated 22 May 2020 relating
10 *COVID-19 - Repulatory Package®, the Company, us per its Board approved policy and ICAI advisories, has granted moratarium upto six months on
the payment of installments which became due between 01 March 2020 and 31 August 2020 to all ehgible borrowers. This relaxation did not
automatically trigger a significant increase in credit risk The Company continued to recognize interest income during the moratorium period and in
the absence of other credit risk indicators, the granting of a moratorium period did not result in accounts becoming past due and automatically
triggering Stage 2 or Swage 3 classification criteria and accordingly, the staging of such accounts of borrowers as at 31 March 2021 is based on day
past due status considering the benefit of moratorium period

Impact of COVID-19
The COVID 19 pandemic had significantly increased the credit risk relating to the loans and advances from the historical loss expectations. The

management had given due care and made forward looking estimates to ECL model so as to cover the additional risk due to the pandemic

Estimations and assumptions censidered in the ECL model

The Company has made the following assumptions in the ECL Model

a) The Campany is primarily engaged in the gold loan business and the average loan duration is less than | year also. Therefore, the Company does not
made any segregation between 12 month ECL and life-time ECL while computing the ECL allowance.

b) Since the Company has no assets which are classified as NPA (more than 90 days past due), there is not asset under credit impaired category.

¢) The Company had started business certain new geographical locations wherein the historical loss details are not avarlable. The loss rates for similar
geographical location 15 considered as a forward looking estimate.

Cancentration of credit risk
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have
similar economic Teatures that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations 1o be similarly aflected by changes in economic, politis:
other conditions

In order 10 avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on spre
portfolio across various products/states/customer base with a cup on maximum limit of exposure for an individual/Group. Accordinfls
does not have concentration risk
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Liquidity riyk
Liquidity risk reters 1o he risk that the Coy
sullicient iquidi

The Company consistent]:
The Company has well defined
manage matunty profiles o
liquidity

Maturity pattern of financial liabitities

Ly and ensure that funds are available for use as

Asset Linbility Management (ALN
f financial assets and financial habilities including d

INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NG PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

"pany cannot meet its financial obligations The objective of liquidity nsk management 1s to maintain

per requirements

1) framework

Y Benerated suflicient cash flows from operations to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
with an appropriate orgamisational structure to regularly monitor and
ebt financing plans, cash and cash equivalent instruments fo ensure

T : ¢ in lakhs
b W 0-12 months leyond 12 months Total
|(a) Payables 14.07 i 307
(b) Debt securities o 1113869 481071 15,949 40
(¢) Borrowings (Otlier than Delbt Secunities) 10.940 20 14.358 36 25,298 56
|(d) Lease labihties (at undiscounted values) .ms 75 4:157,56 4,936 61
(1) Subordinated 1 iabilities ] 275235 16.268 35 19.020 70
(G) Onher financial liabilites 181807 128289 3,130 9
T ) 27,392.13 40,978.17 68,370.30
LAs nt Marc 2 |
(a) Payables o 1842 . 3842
(b) Debt secunities | 3,870.86 1,295 65 5.166 51
(¢) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 9,996 69 621224 16,208 93
(d) Lease habilities (at undiscounted values) 571.46 382378 4,395.24
(e) Deposits = - -
(1) Subordinated Liabilities 1,551.80 13,206 25 14.758.05
|(2) Other financial liabilities 1.219.09 683 18 190227
17,248.32 2522110 42,469.42

Financial instruments

The sigmﬁl:nnl‘nccuuntmg policies, meluding the critena for Tecognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
fecogmized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note #2 to the financial statements

tasyificatio nancial assets and liabilities

The fair values of the financial assets / liabilities represent the price that would be received to sell the financial asset or paid to transfer the financial
hability 1n an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

| Fair value of trade receivables, cash, loans, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities, approximate their camying amounts
largely due to short term maturities of these instrumenis

2 Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates-and indwidual
credit worthiness of the counterparty  Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken 1o account for expected losses of these financial assets
Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially diflerent from their CAITYINg amounts,

The fair values of security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using current lending rate The fair values are classified as Level 3
in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter party credit risk

The Company does not have ony financial instruments which are held for trading and no financial instruments are re
value through profit or loss. Further, the Company has no instruments which are accounted for usi

AS 109 Financial Instruments.

quired 1o be accounted using fair
ng hedge accounting model as specified under Ind

£ in lakhs
Particulars Non-current Curremt Total

As at March 31, 2022 o |
Financial assets al amortised cost
() Cash and cash cquivalents - 7.880 15 7.880.15
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash 1,006 12 1,006 12
equivalents P
(¢) Receivables AL RN - 5,532 80 5,532 80
(d) Loans [/ N& 447478 | 47,892 51 52,16729
(1) Investments [ Y 1200 . 1200
(g) Other financial assets o\ /3 82028 100 89 92117
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- B - 6,13.18 61,106.35 67,7195
Linancial habilities ai amortised cost
(n) Payables o S = 3407 3407
(h) Debt securitics 4,810.71 11,3869 15,949 40
(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 14,358 36 10,940.20 25,298 56
(d) Deposils - - -
(¢) Subordinated Liabilities 16,268 35 2,75235 19,020 70
() Other financial habilitics - 1,282 89 1.848.07 3,130 96
36,720.31 26,713.38 63,433.69
As al March 31, 2021
Funancial assets at amortised cost
(a) Cash and cash cquivalents . 719.58 71958
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash 61924 - 64924
cquivalents
() Receivables z 4,039 68 4,039 68
(d) Loans 3,214.49 36,592 28 39,806 77
(1) Investments 1200 2 1200
() Other linancial assets 389.88 3252 422 40
4,265.61 41,384.06 45,649.67
Fnancial habilities ai amortised cost
() Payables E 3842 3842
(b) Debt securities 1,295 65 3,870 86 516651
(¢) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 9,177 88 1031500 19.492 88
(d) Deposits - - =
(¢) Subordinated Liabilines 13,206.25 1.551 80 14,758 05
(1) Other financial liabilities 68).18 1,219.09 190227
24,362.96 16,995.17 41,358.13

Fair value hicrarchy

The fair value hicrarchy is based on inputs 1o valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservahle and

consists of the following three levels

- Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilitics. ) ) o
- Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, directly (i ¢ , as prices) or indirectly

(1.¢., derived from prices)
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mined in whole or in part using & valuation

nputs). Fair values are deter
rument nor are they

Level 3+ Inputs are not based on ohservable market data (unobservable
current market transactions in the same inst

model based on assumptions that are newther supported by prices from observable
based on avatlable market data

The fair value of loan assets has been arrived at by using fevel 3 inputs at initial recognition and subsequently measured using amortized cost mode!

There are no financial instruments which are carried at fair value as at the Balance Sheel date

Additional disclosures required under Schedule 111

Loans and advances to promoters. KMPs, Directors and related parties

Details of loans to promaters, KMPs, Directors and other related parties during the period are as follows:

- I'ype of borrower As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Amount outstandin % of total Amount outstanding % of total
Repayment terms are fixed
a) P'romolers -
b) Durectors B 5
c) KMPs . -
d) Related parties - 514 .00 100 00%

r!_i:[mrublc on denand

a) Promolers . L .
(b) Directors d

¢) KMPs
1d) Related parties = - '
without speclfying any terms or period of repayment
a) Promolers

b) Directors

¢) KMI's

d) Related parties

Iransactions related to Crypo-currency

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period (previous year - Nil)

Fund received from other - persons/ entities for lending” investing’ providing guarantee
The company has not received any funds from any person/entitics, for the purposc of directly of indirectly lending/investing/providing
guarantee/security to another person/entity, by or on behall of the person/entity from whom such amount is received during the period in contravention

of the Act or RBI guidelines

The company has not advanced/loaned/invested funds to any person/entity for the purpose of directly or indirectly lending/ investing/ praviding
guarantee/ security to a third person/entity, by or on behall of the company in contravention of the Act

Utiltsation of borrawings
The Company had utilised the borrowings availed during the period for the purposes specified

Periodical reperts submrtted to bank on current assels

The Company has taken loans from banks/ Financial Institutions (
The periodic returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or

F1) on the basis of security of assets like loans receivable
financial institutions are m agreement with the books of

accounts

Disclosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not given any loans/ advances/ guarantees 1o any related person/ entities i contravention of section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

Details of Corporate gharantees given by the Campaty
The Company has not given any corporate guarantee In respect of any loan during the penod

Revaluanion of assels

Ihe Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Fquipment (including Right-of-Use Assets)/ Intangible Assets during the period (previous year -
Nil)

Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, [958
The company is not holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
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46,10 Willfd defonlrer .
The company is not wilful defaulters under guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India

46.11 Relationship with struck of compantes

The company has no relationship and transactions with struck off companies

46.12 Delay in registration of charges
The company has not made any delay in registration of Charges during the period

46.13 Layers of investmen
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the companies Act 2013

46.14 Compronises and Arrangements

The company has not entered in scheme of armangement under section 230 to 237 of Companies Act 2013 during the period

4618 Jransactions not recorded in the books disclosed under income tax
There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts, which are disclosed during the Income tax assessment/scarch/survey.
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47 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

A

=

(5]

D

Enterprise where control exists
Related Parties

Holding Company :
Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company:

Individual and relatives of Individual

Partnership Firm in which Director Iy a partner

Companies/Firm in which Individual and
relatives of Individunl exercise
control/significant influence

ame of rela rlies
Indel Corporation Private Limited

Indel Money Fin-Tech Private Limited

Indel Automotives Private Limited
M Star Hotels Private Limited

Mr.Gopalakrishna Mohanan, Managing Director
Mr.Umesh Mohanan, Director

Mr. Salil Venu, Director

Mrs. Kavitha Menon, Director

Mrs. Usha Devi Mohanan

Mind Story

M Star Satelite Communicalions Private Limited
M Star Hotel Henitage Private Limited
Wind flower Consultancy

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balance as at the year

A
(i

(U]

(i)

(ii)

Transaction with lolding Company

Indel Corporation Private Limited As at

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Opening Balance 112.47 157.43
Lxpenses incurred 10.71 942
Empenscs reimbursed (9.50) (9.88)
RentalMaintenance Expenses 60.44 49.14
Rental/Maintenance Expenses paid (61.90) (19.14)
Rent Deposit 385.00 11000
Advance Paid 1,733.48 760.50
Advance returned (1,672.80) (915.00)
Amount Due from/(to) related party 557.90 112.47
Subsidiary Company
Indel Money Fin-Tech Private Limited Asal

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Opening Balance 12,26 11.84
Advances given 0.49 0.43
Amount Due from/(to) related party 12,76 12.26
Fellow subsidary company:
Indel Automotives Private Limited As at

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Opening Balance 33142 325.35
I'DS receivable . 10.16
Interest Accrued 15.32 56.67
Loan repayment (320.00) -
Interest received (16.59) (60.76)
Amount Due from/(to) related party 10.16 142
M Star Hotels Private Limited As at

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Opening Balance 1.02 a
TDS receivable " 1.02
Amount Due lrom/(1o) related party 1.02 1.02
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(i)

(iil)

(iv)

(1)

INDEL MONEY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2021-22

Transactions with Individual exercise control over the company

As al

Mohananan Gopalakrishnan ﬁlﬁm_sﬁozz March 31,2021
Opening Balanee (0.46) (0 ;;)
Interest on Bond accrued (3.12) (4 iJ
Interest paid 2.96 J‘l;)
Dircctors Remunerationpaid 1200 |2-:’6
Amount Due from/(lo) related party - (0.62) (0.16)

, o B Asat
iy Haliws March 31,2022 March 31,202
Bpenlng Balance (035) 1.82
Salary pad 120,00 30.00
Lxpenses reimbursed (18.33) (1.82)
Interest on Bond acerued (180) 77
Interest paid 270 242
Advance Paid 119.00 150.00
Amount Received (94.91) (150.00)]
Amount Due from/(to) related party 22.65 (0.35)

! Asat
it March 31,2022 March 31,2020
Directors Remuneration paid 9.00 9.00
Amount Due from/(to) related party - =
Asal

Kavitha Menon

March 31,2022

March 31,2020

Dircctors Remuneration paid 3.00 3.00
Amount Due from/(to) related party " :
As at
I 1R

Usha Deyl Vobdnsn March 31,2022 March 31,2020
Opening Balance (12.89) 8.52)
Interest on Bond accrued (565) (4.91)
Interest paid 1.05 0.54
Amount Due from/(to) related party (17.49) (12.89)
Partnership Firm in which Directoris a partner
Mind Story oLl

March 31,2022 March 31,2020
Opening Balance L4 -
Expenses incurred 16.52 13.51
I'mpenses reimbursed (18.27) (10.38)
Amount Due from/(to) related party 1.39 3.14
Companies in which Individual and relatives of Individual exercise controlsignificant influence
M Star Satellite Communications Private Limited Asat

March 31,2022 March 31,2020
Opening Balance 232.66 451.84
TDS Receivable (7.59) 527
Interest acerued 30.12 48.16
Interest Received (68.78) (41.61)
Amount repad (194.00) (231.00)
Amount Due from/(to) related party (7.59) 232.66
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As at

M Star Heritage Hotels Private Limited Mareh 31,2022 March 31,2020
Opening balance 011 0
Amount 3 .
Amount Due from/(to) related party 0.1 0.11
[ As at
WRAENARER DRG] ey March 31,2022 Mareh 31,2020
Consultation Fee 1992 1992
Amount Due from/(to) related party = .

Balance confirmations o

Balances of Loan from Financials Institutions -Term Loan are subject to confrimation and reconcilations.

Regrouping of comparative period information

: form 1o the classification of the

The information relating (o comparative periods have been regrouped /reclassified /restated to con

current year which are required in accordance with Ind AS.




S0 Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of [ndia Notification No. DNBS.CC.PD.No, 265/03.10.01/2011-12
dated March 21,2012

N _Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loan granted against collateral of gold jewellery | s 30,988 17
Tol Asset of the Company - . 767937 50,223 54
Petcentage of loans granted against collateral o ™
DI‘L;OldJ_e\\cllm to Tolal Assets 57.38% 2,79
—=—— ) 0 T0lal Assels S e

51

Companies Prudential N orms (Reserve Bank Directions, 2007)

Liability Side N Tin lakhs
—___ Particulas | Marenan 202 Stareh3t, 3021
1) Loans and Advances availed by the non- banking, financial

company inclusive of interest acrrued thercon but not paid

——nolpaid |
a)Dcbentures Secured 15,949.40 5,166.51
Subodinated Bonds _Unsecured 190201 14,758.05
(other than falling with in the meaning of public deposits) - =
b) Deferred Creduts o

<) Term [.oans R =

19,206.57 1377547
d) Inter -Corporate Loans and Borrowing, z <
¢) Commercial Paper o

M) Other Loans (Cash Credit and lease habilities) B 6,091.99 571741
Asset Side Lin lakhs
Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

2) Break -up of loans and advances including bill receivables
(other than those included in (4) below) S
) Secured 45,269 11 3713959

b) Unsecured 1,098 18 2,667 18

(3) Break-up of Leased Assels and stock on hire and other
assels counting towards AFC activities LI S
(1) Lease ssets including lease rentals under sundry deblors |

() Financial lease
(b) Operating lease -
(1) Stock on hire including hire charyes under sundry debtors |-
() Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(i) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
() Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

() Break-up of Investments

Current [nvestments:

1. Quoted:

(1) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(11) Debentures and Bonds

(1) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Sccuritics

(v) Others (please specify)

2 Unquoted

(1) Shares : (1) Equity

(b) Preference

(1) Debentures and Bonds

(i11) Units of mutual funds

(1v) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

[,ung [erm investments

1. Quoted




1) Shares _ (a) Equity B - : -
b) Preference o ] = =

(1) Debentures and Bonds o S :
(1) Units of mutual funds o T o 3 I
(1v) Government Securities ] S
(v) Others (please specify) B - -
2 Unquoted: - . s
(1) Shares : (a) Equity - - - 1200 129
o (b) Preference H =
(11) Debentures and Bonds ) . .

(1) Units of mutual funds
(tv) Government Securities

[(v) Others (Gold Ring & Gold audit kit) = 095 | 095
5. Borrower Group Wise Classifaction of assets financial a8 in (2) and (3) above Uin lakhs
Amount net of provisions
Cat
| alegory Secured Unsecured Total
| Related Parties
(a) Subsidianes - - =
(b) Companics in the same group 514.00 . 514.00
(c)Other Related Parties T - .
2 Onher than related parties ( nel of provisions) 36,625.59 2,667.18 39,2927
Total 37,139.59 2,667.18 139,806.77

6. Investor group wise classification of all investments (Current and long lerm) in shares and sccurites (both quoted
and unquoted)

Market Value/Break up ook Value

or i
Fair Valucor NAY el

Category

1.Related Parties

(a) Subsidaries

(b) Comp in the same group
(c) Other Related Parties

12 1,00,000

2 Other than related parties :
Towl

12 1,00.000

7 Othier Information

Particulars Amount
(1) Gross Non- Performing Asset
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than Related Partics
(ii) Net Non -Performing Assel
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than Related Parties
(1) Asset acquired in satisfaction of debt

Cin lakhs

EXPOSURES
2021.22 2020-21

Exposure 1o Real Estate Sector

Category

a) Direct Exposure

1) Residential Mortgages-

that 1s or will be

occupied by the borrower or that is rented, (indvidual housing

loans upto




e = i [
11) Commercial Real Estate -

- S —— — _———
Office buildings,

retail space, multipury 1l premises,multi -famliy

residential buildings

multi-1 d Iy . industrial ,or warehouse

space hotels, 251

1) Investments in Mortgage Backed securities (MIBS)
other sccuritised exposure —
o) Residenval

b)Commercinl Real Estate

b) Indirect Exposure B -

Fund -Based and Non-Fund Rasedexposures on - ‘
National Housing Bank and (N1113)

and Housing Finance Companies (WFCs) | i 2
Notes on accounts form part of standalone fi 1 st
As per our report of even date attached

For FRG & Company
Chartered Accountants
(Regigiration No. 23258N)

For and on behalf of the board
!

Rajesh Tiwari Mohankn Gadiyks Uniesh Moh ;:/
(Partner) Mna, y Director

Membership No 128959 DI’ DINNg. 024 ~
Place : Kochi

Date . 30-May-2022

Hanga F'Nazir
Company Sepr€luy
Membership No. ASIN?
Place : Kochi

Date : 30-May-2022



